
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

AGENDA & Notice of Work Session & Joint City Council and Infrastructure Task Force 
 

 
The City Council of the City of Newport will hold a work session on Monday, January 6, 2014, 
at 12:00 P.M., followed by Joint meeting of the City Council and Infrastructure Task Force at 
6:00 P.M. The work session will be held in Conference Room A at City Hall, and Joint City 
Council and Infrastructure Task Force meeting will be held in the Council Chambers, City 
Hall, located at 169 S.W. Coast Highway, Newport, Oregon 97365. A copy of the agenda 
follows. 

 
The meeting locations are accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter 
for the hearing impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities, should 
be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to Peggy Hawker, City Recorder 
541.574.0613. 
 
The City Council reserve the right to add or delete items as needed, change the order of the 
agenda, and discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the work session 
and/or meeting. 
 

 
 CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION  

 Monday, January 6, 2014 – 12:00 P.M. 
Conference Room A 

 
I. Additional Work Session Items Not Listed on the Agenda (for this and future work 

sessions) 
II. Planning Commission Vacancy Interviews 

III. Discussion on the Priorities for City Manager During the first Six Months and the City 
Manager’s Role at City Council Meetings 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
JOINT CITY COUNCIL AND INFRASTRUCTURE TASK FORCE AGENDA 

Monday, January 6, 2014 – 6:00 P.M.  
Council Chamber 

  
 

Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should complete a Public Comment Form and 
give it to the City Recorder. Public Comment Forms are located at the entrance to the City 
Council Chamber. Anyone commenting on a subject not on the agenda will be called upon 
during the Public Comment section of the agenda. Comments pertaining to specific agenda 
items will be taken at the time the matter is discussed by the City Council.  
 

I. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

II. Call to Order and Roll Call   
 

III. Additions/Deletions and Approval of Agenda 
 

IV. Public Comment 
This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention 
any item not listed on the Agenda. Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per 
person with a maximum of 15 minutes for all items. Speakers may not yield their time 
to other. 

 
V. Proclamations, Recognitions & Special Presentations 

 
A. Swearing in New Police Sergeant 

 
VI. Consent Calendar 

The consent calendar consists of items of a repeating or routine nature considered 
under a single action. Any Councilor may have an item on the consent agenda 
removed and considered separately on request. 
 

A. Approval of City Council Minutes from the Joint Work Session and Regular 
Meeting of December 16, 2013 (Hawker) 

 
VII. Officer’s Reports 

 
A. Mayor’s Report 

1. Committee Reappointments  
 

VIII. Discussion Items and Presentations 
Items that do not require immediate Council action, such as presentations, 
discussion of potential future action items. 
 

A. Infrastructure Task Force Report 
a. Approval of Infrastructure Task Force Minutes from Meeting of 

December 19, 2013 



 

 

 
IX. Action Items 

Citizens will be provided an opportunity to offer comments on action items after staff 
has given their report and if there is an applicant, after they have had the 
opportunity to speak. (Action items are expected to result in motions, resolutions, 
orders, or ordinances.) 

 
A. Approval of Tourism Facilities Grant for the Sea Lion Dock Foundation 
B. Consideration of Resolution No. 3661 Adopting A Tax Exempt Bond Post 

Issuance Compliance Policy 
C. Consideration of Resolution No.3662 CIP Adjustment to Land Use Fees 
D. Selection of City Council President 

 
X. Council Reports and Comments 

 
XI. Public Comment (Additional time for public comment – 5 minutes per speaker) 

 
XII. Adjournment 
 



 



Planning Commission Membership 
 
 
ORS 227.030(4) stipulates that no more than two voting members of the commission may engage 
principally in the buying, selling or developing of real estate for profit as individuals, or be members of 
any partnership, or officers or employees of any corporation, that engages principally in the buying, 
selling or developing of real estate for profit. No more than two members shall be engaged in the same 
kind of occupation, business, trade or profession. 
 
Here is the current makeup of the Commission: 
 
Patrick:            construction contractor 
Croteau:          university professor 
East:                contractor materials – outside sales 
Branigan:          retired (banker) 
Fisher:              retired (Probation & Parole) 
McIntyre:          retired (developer); currently school bus driver 
 
 











 









 













 













 







 
December 16, 2013 

6:06 P.M. 
Newport, Oregon 

 
 The City Council of the City of Newport met on the above date in the Council 
Chambers of the Newport City Hall. On roll call, Roumagoux, Beemer, Allen, Busby, 
Swanson, Sawyer, and Saelens were present. 
 Staff present was City Manager Nebel, City Recorder Hawker, Library Director 
Smith, Community Development Director Tokos, Public Works Director Gross, Fire 
Chief Paige, Deputy Fire Chief Murphy, and Police Chief Miranda. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 Council, staff, and the audience participated in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 Roumagoux recognized Spencer Nebel and welcomed him to the city. Nebel 
thanked Council and noted that he looks forward to serving the City Council and citizens 
of Newport. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS 
 
 Roumagoux proclaimed the month of January 2014 to be Jewelry Collection Month 
in the City of Newport. Nancy Smith accepted the proclamation and thanked Council 
and the community for its support. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

 The consent calendar consisted of the following items: 
 

 A. Approval of City Council minutes from the work session, executive session, and 
 regular meeting of November 18, 2013, and the special meeting of December 9, 
 2013. 
 
 Allen and Saelens suggested changes to the minutes. MOTION was made by 
Beemer, seconded by Busby, to approve the consent calendar with the changes to the 
minutes as noted by Allen and Saelens. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

OFFICER’S REPORTS 
 

 Mayor’s Report. Roumagoux appointed Amanda Capri, Susan Hogg, and Marcia 
Eckelman to the Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee. MOTION was made by 
Saelens, seconded by Beemer, to ratify the Mayor’s appointments. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. Saelens reported that the Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee interviewed four top-notch candidates. 
 Roumagoux appointed Sawyer as the city’s representative to the Cascades West 
Area Commission on Transportation, and Busby as the alternate. MOTION was made 



by Beemer, seconded by Saelens to ratify the Mayor’s appointments. The motion 
carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 City Manager’s Report. Smith reported that the departmental reports are included in 
the packet. Allen thanked Smith for his six months of excellent service as Interim City 
Manager. 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
 Presentation by PAADA. Don McDonald, Coalition Coordinator for PAADA, thanked 
Council for allowing time for his presentation. He explained the operations and work of 
PAADA, including: history; partnerships; mission; community change; marijuana issues; 
and City Council considerations relative to marijuana issues. He responded to Council 
questions. 
 
 Big Creek Road Discussion. Gross reported that the issue before Council relates to 
Big Creek Road between Frank Wade Park and NE Harney Street. He noted that the 
road has been closed since January of 2011 due to landslides associated with a winter 
storm that year. He stated that the city has recently completed a restoration project that 
repaired the slide areas. Gross added that the repair area encompassed approximately 
the northern half of the section of the road, and resulted in a road cross-section of 
between 16 to 20 feet in width. He noted that as Public Works staff began preparing Big 
Creek Road to be reopened, it became apparent that the entire length of Big Creek 
Road could be widened to accommodate a 16 to 20 foot width. He added that city staff, 
including the City Manager, Police Chief, Community Development Director, and Public 
Works Director agreed that it was both safe and in the best interests of the city and the 
Lakewood Hills neighborhood to reopen Big Creek Road as a two-way road. He 
explained the initial plan to extend Harney Street and the feasibility of such an 
extension. He added that with the additional planned development, safety issues could 
occur at 31st and 36th Streets and Highway 101. He noted that it is in the best interest of 
the city to provide a secondary access. Gross explained that an adequate transportation 
route is needed in and out of that neighborhood, and with the infeasibility of the 
extension of Harney Street, Big Creek Road appeared as a viable option. Gross stated 
that he recommends opening Big Creek Road as a two-way road. He added that it is not 
necessary to make the road two-way now, but added that if Slayden begins construction 
on a residential development in the area, the city needs to be ahead of the game. Gross 
added that Lakewood Hills developed faster than the infrastructure necessary to 
maintain the neighborhood. It was noted that the Fire Department included a letter in the 
packet which expresses its desire not to limit access. 
 Roumagoux asked for public comment. 
 Pat Cowan read a letter requesting that Big Creek Road remain one-way. 

Jean Cowan supported leaving the road as one-way.  
 Sharon Lihou concurred with the Cowan’s that Big Creek Road remain one-way. 
 Wayne Brunelle, president of the Lakewood Hills Neighborhood Association, 
reported that the opinions of his members are approximately split. He added that he 
simply wants the road open. 



 Doug Hoffman stated that he supports opening Big Creek Road as a two-way road 
due to the need for a second arterial.  
 David Boys stated that eventually the city will need an arterial, but that currently, the 
neighborhood and city are best served by having the road as one-way southbound. 
 Roumagoux referred the matter to staff. Nebel noted that staff will research the issue 
and report back to Council by the second meeting in January. He added that Council 
may take action after reviewing the staff report. Allen asked whether the road would be 
opened as a one-way road. He added that when the city took jurisdiction of the road 
from the county, it was one-way. He noted that the city probably took some affirmative 
action related to the installation of signs and police enforcement. He added that even 
though the road was not formally designated as one-way by the city, the city has taken 
affirmative steps to keep it one-way. Allen asked whether the decision to make the 
street two-way is a staff decision. Gross noted that if Council wants to keep Big Creek 
Road as a one-way road, a traffic order should be issued, as this would provide a paper 
trail and give the police the enforcement authority. Allen asked what needs to be done in 
the time between when the road is opened and the time of the staff report in order to 
maintain the status quo of the road. Gross asked whether Council had an opinion 
relative to the road. Beemer suggested opening the road, one-way, going south. Gross 
asked whether Council needed additional information. It was noted that everyone should 
be on notice that it will probably become a two-way road. Beemer noted that he would 
like to find a bicycle/pedestrian area off the road, but that building a trail or sidewalk next 
to road will not be easy. Saelens stated that he would support the decision to make the 
road one-way for now. He noted that when the original proposal for the Harney Street 
extension was presented with a 600-foot bridge crossing streams, there was citizen 
outcry to convert Big Creek Road into a bypass for Newport. He noted that a bypass 
could possibly be constructed east of Forest Park. Allen noted that Council has the 
authority, under the code, to reverse a staff decision. He added that Council could also 
direct staff to draft a proposed traffic order establishing Big Creek Road as a one-way, 
and recommending a process for moving forward which could be discussed as part of 
an action item at the next meeting. Gross noted that staff is waiting for delineators 
before opening the street. Nebel noted that if Council consensus is to open Big Creek 
Road as a one-way road going south, staff will draft a traffic order formalizing the status 
for Council consideration. Busby stated that he prefers the road to open as a two-way 
road as it provides more freedom of movement. Saelens suggested consideration of a 
speed bump near Sam Case School. Sawyer added that he remembers when Big Creek 
Road was a two-lane road, but that his preference is the one-way option. Gross noted 
that he believed this discussion important as it may be necessary to open the road in 
both directions in the future until an alternate arterial can be constructed. He stated that 
he will improve the road, open it as a one-way road, and move forward. MOTION was 
made by Allen, seconded by Beemer, that when Big Creek Road opens up that it be 
kept as a one-way road with traffic going south bound; with an allowance for emergency 
access going northbound; and in addition to opening the road as a one-way; direct staff 
to come back to Council with a staff report acknowledging the issues discussed tonight 
and incorporate the issues into a traffic order for Council consideration in January. The 
motion carried unanimously in a voice vote.  
 
 



PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
  Public Hearing on the Scheduled 10-Year Review of the Nye Beach Design Review 
District. Roumagoux opened the public hearing on the scheduled 10-year review of the 
Nye Beach Design Review District at 7:22 P.M. She asked for the staff report. Tokos 
reported that the issue before Council is to hold a public hearing to take testimony on 
whether the city should make changes to the Nye Beach Design Review District. He 
noted that this is a scheduled 10-year review required by Ordinance No. 1865.  
 Tokos stated that in 2003, the city created the Nye Beach Design Review District 
which enacted architectural design requirements and flexible development standards for 
new construction or areas of redevelopment in Nye Beach. He added that Ordinance 
No. 1865, which created the district, requires that within 10 years of the date of 
adoption, Council hold a hearing to consider whether changes need to be made to the 
district policies, boundaries, and implementing regulations, and that this hearing serves 
as the required 10-year review. 
 Tokos stated that on June 26, 2013, Nye Beach residents and business owners met 
with staff to relate concerns they have with the Design Review District. He noted that an 
e-mail summarizing those issues is included in the packet. He added that the need for 
the 10-year review was also discussed at the April 29, 2013 Town Hall meeting, and that 
information submitted to Council at that time is also included in the packet. He reported 
that the last project requiring a design review permit was the hotel formerly known as the 
Greenstone Inn, and that decision was issued in 2008. 
 Tokos reported that notice of this hearing was provided to all property owners within 
the boundary of the Nye Beach Design Review District; press releases were issued; and 
staff attended the recent Nye Beach Merchants holiday potluck to further advertise this 
opportunity for interested parties to weigh in on this issue. 
 Roumagoux asked for public testimony. 
 Doug Fitts reported that the bulb-outs make it difficult to turn corners without driving 
on the sidewalk. He added that the street lights on Beach Drive have been placed in the 
street eliminating several parking spaces. 
 Frances VanWert stated that Nye Beach has become a tourist destination partly due 
to its historical attributes and uniqueness. She suggested modifications to the district 
relative to size, height, mass, width, setbacks, and the solar aspect. 
 Kathy Cleary reported that her business does not get sun due to the three-story 
building across the street. She suggested that modifications to the district should include 
that development be done in a constructive and thoughtful way. She recommended 
sending the issue to the Planning Commission to work out the details, “put teeth” in the 
ordinances, and design something that is fair and just for everyone. 
 Norm Ferber reported that he has vacation homes in Nye Beach. He addressed 
potential zoning district changes. He noted that it is a unique community and urged 
Council to seriously consider any change it might consider making.   
 Wendy Engler distributed a map and photos to Council and the audience. She 
welcomed Nebel as City manager. She addressed the zoning district issues. She 
reported that the Glick Study and the Comprehensive Plan are the foundation for the 
overlay which was designed to enhance and preserve the historic feel of Nye Beach. 
She stated that she preferred the second motion in the staff report. She added that she 
does not think the ordinance needs much work, but recommended sending it to the 



Planning Commission for review. When asked what the Planning Commission process 
would be, Tokos reported that it depends on the scope of what the Planning 
Commission has been asked to review. He added that it is a legislative process and a 
program would be established for public feedback. He added that if detailed 
architectural issues need to be addressed, the city might need outside resources. Tokos 
noted that it would be incumbent upon the Planning Commission to address any issues 
that are raised through the process. He added that this motion is designed to help focus 
the conversation so that the Planning Commission has some sidebars to start the 
conversation. Engler noted that emphasizing the history and maintaining the charm of 
the district is important. She reiterated that mass is the issue. 
 Allen noted that the packet contains an e-mail message between Tokos and Engler 
that lists eight bullet points. He added that motion two contains a blank for issues to be 
directed to the Planning Commission, and asked whether the eight bullet points could be 
used as a starting point. Allen asked how specific the motion needed to be in referring 
the matter to the Planning Commission. Tokos noted that specific issues of mass were 
brought up to try to illustrate concerns. It was noted that the issue would return to 
Council after the Planning Commission review.  Saelens stated that the issues he 
tracked included: height; mass; setback; village character; consideration of taller 
buildings having stepped back roof lines; and open areas between buildings. 
 Roumagoux reported that she had received letters with good suggestions from Jody 
George and Mar Lehrman. 
 Saelens noted that if the matter is not referred back to the Planning Commission that 
history has indicated there is not much to stop another large mass project. 
 Frank DiFilippis reported that his concern is the height and mass of buildings. He 
added that open spaces are good. 
 Terry Obteshka stated that Engler clarified most of his concerns which relate to 
height and mass. He suggested keeping the good parts of the district and modifying it to 
make it better. He added that he is concerned about zoning on side streets where there 
are R-4’s in R-1 zones. He suggested something in the building code that would 
encourage green building design. He also recommended requirements for making the 
area more bicycle and pedestrian friendly, and specifically suggested bike lockers. He 
summarized by stating that mass, height, and public safety are his main concerns. 
 Chuck Victory agreed with the previous speaker’s comments relative to mass, 
height, size, structure, zoning, and parking. 
 Allen asked Tokos whether the Planning Commission could also look at the zoning 
issue or whether that would have to be dealt with separately from the design review 
issue. Tokos noted that if Council thinks that zoning should be addressed, it should be 
included in the motion. Allen noted that there is no formal check-in after this unless a 
provision is added to ordinance. 
 Jeff Bertuleit reported that he agrees that the issues of mass, size, sunshine, and 
zoning need to be addressed. He stated that he supports remanding the issue back to 
the Planning Commission. 
 Marletta Noe recommended leaving the residential areas alone and not dictating to 
residents what their homes should look like. 
 Allen noted that similar to the zoning issue, there was correspondence regarding the 
size of the district, and added that it may need to be adjusted. Tokos noted that the 



boundaries are fair game, and the letters suggest that it might make sense to move the 
boundaries inward.  
 Roumagoux closed the public hearing for Council deliberation at 8:25 P.M. 
 Saelens noted that in his work with the Wayfinding Committee and the development 
of new tourist maps, it might make sense to more clearly define the boundaries of all 
districts. 
 MOTION was made by Saelens, seconded by Beemer, that, based upon the 
testimony provided this evening, the Council initiate proposed changes to the Nye 
Beach Design Review District to address the following issues but not limited to these 
issues: width, mass, setback, maintaining village character, height, size, zoning, 
boundaries, and direct the matter to the Newport Planning Commission to develop the 
necessary recommended amendments in accordance with the appropriate procedures 
contained in the Newport Zoning Ordinance. Allen recommended adding the word 
“proposed” before the word “changes” in the second line of the motion, and the word 
“recommended” before the word “amendments” in the fifth line of the motion. Both the 
motion maker and second agreed. The motion, as amended, carried unanimously in a 
voice vote. 
 
 Public Hearing on Resolution No. 3652 Adopting a Supplemental Budget and 
Making Appropriations Changes for Fiscal Year 2013/2014. Roumagoux opened the 
public hearing at 8:29 P.M. She asked for the staff report. Gazewood reported that the 
purpose of Resolution No. 3652 is to adopt a supplemental budget to increase 
appropriations in the General Fund and the Room Tax Fund. He added that this 
supplemental budget establishes a Reserve Fund for Future Capital Purchases. He 
noted that pursuant to Oregon Local Budget Law, a public hearing is required for this 
supplemental budget. 
 Gazewood reported that the General Fund was included in this supplemental budget 
as the General Fund is the primary source of funding for the establishment of the 
Reserve Fund for Future Capital Purchases. He stated that revenues for the Reserve 
Fund were provided by General Fund transfers to set aside monies for future Police, 
Fire, and Library capital purchases. He added that the General Fund’s increased 
appropriation totals $418,510, and is funded by beginning fund balance partial excess of 
$65,000; transfer from the Room Tax Fund of $72,900; and a transfer from the Newport 
Urban Renewal Agency – North Side District of $280,610, and represents the District’s 
close-out funds. He noted that the Urban Renewal Agency funds are the total of 
accumulated cash and receivables as of November 30, 2013, for debt payments on city 
held properties purchased with URA property tax collections. 
 Gazewood reported that the Reserve Fund for Future Capital Purchases is further 
financed by fire conflagration monies in the amount of $25,000 directly allocated to the 
Reserve Fund. He noted that the revenue transferred to the Reserve Fund from the 
General Fund totals $165,000. He stated that $190,000 has been set aside in the 
Reserve Fund assigned to three accounts (Police, Fire, and Library) to be available for 
future capital purchases. He noted that the fire account has $145,000 set aside in this 
supplemental budget. He added that this supplemental budget only creates the Reserve 
Fund and specifically states that available funds are not appropriated. 
 Gazewood reported that the Room Tax Fund has an appropriation increase of 
$317,624 which is supported by an increase in the beginning fund balance of $32,624; 



revised estimate of transient room tax collections of $135,000, and OCCA/PAC 
matching funds of $150,000 for the new acoustic sound system for the PAC. 

Roumagoux asked for public testimony. There was none. 
 Roumagoux closed the public hearing at 8:45 P.M. for Council deliberation. Allen 
asked whether this resolution formalizes information presented at a recent work session. 
Gazewood confirmed that once money is placed in the General Fund, it essentially gets 
lost in that Fund. He added that the only way to maintain a clear identity is to set up a 
reserve fund to save money for future capital purchases and designate accounts that 
you want in that fund. Allen noted that there were reserve funds for many years, but 
eventually staff started handling this internally in the General Fund. MOTION was made 
by Swanson, seconded by Beemer, to adopt Resolution No. 3652 with Attachment “A,” a 
resolution adopting a supplemental budget for fiscal year 2013/2014 and making 
appropriation increases and changes for fiscal year 2013/2014. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
  Notice of Intent to Award the Bid for the Performing Arts Center Acoustic Sound 
System Project. Melissa Roman, Engineering Technician, reported that the issue before 
Council is the consideration of approval of the notice of intent to award the bid for the 
PAC acoustic sound system project. She noted that this project is one phase of the PAC 
remodel which is being coordinated by the Oregon Coast Council for the Arts (OCCA). 
She added that the cost for the acoustic sound system has been isolated from other 
construction costs included in the remodel project. Roman reported that OCCA received 
a $250,000 Tourism Facilities Grant, funded by transient room tax, and OCCA wishes to 
use a portion of the grant toward the purchase of an acoustic sound system. She added 
that the city has required OCCA to have 50% of the project costs on hand before moving 
forward with the award of the proposal. She stated that OCCA wishes to pay more than 
50% of the contract amount, using only $20,000 in grant funds; leaving remaining grant 
funds available for other components of the remodel project. Roman reported that bids 
were opened on October 8, 2013, and one bid was received from Doug Wilson 
Construction, Inc., and this firm has been determined to be a responsive bidder. Allen 
asked whether Speer Hoyt had vetted the agreement, and Roman noted that the 
agreement had been reviewed by the legal team. 
 Mark McConnell read a statement and referenced a handout regarding the PAC.  
 MOTION was made by Swanson, seconded by Busby, to authorize the Public Works 
Department to issue a Notice of Intent to Award the PAC Acoustic Sound System 
Project to Doug Wilson Construction, Inc., in the amount of $288,086.00, and contingent 
upon no protest, authorize award and direct the City Manager to execute this contract on 
behalf of the city. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Request from the Oregon Coast Council for the Arts to Place a Sculpture on City-
Owned Property. Catherine Rickbone, executive director of the Oregon Coast Council 
for the Arts, noted that the city created a Public Arts Committee and Percent for the Arts 
Program. She reviewed the Committee’s activities.  

Rickbone reported that the late Mark Sponenburgh bequeathed $50,000 to OCCA 
for the purchase, placement, and maintenance of a sculpture, entitled “Mother and 



Child,” by sculptor Mary Lewis. She noted that the project was reviewed and endorsed 
by the Public Arts Committee. She reported that various locations for placement of the 
sculpture were considered, and a site was selected near the PAC and the intersection of 
Coast and Olive Streets and displayed a slide of the proposed installation. She added 
that Jerry Harpster, a trustee of the Sponenburgh estate, and an artist in his own right, 
has designed a tamper-resident base for the sculpture which is planned to be placed on 
an oval concrete pad. She stated that the costs of installation and maintenance would 
be borne by OCCA. 

MOTION was made by Busby, seconded by Saelens, to direct staff to prepare an 
agreement between the city and the Oregon Coast Council for the Arts allowing the 
placement of a sculpture on city-owned property near the Performing Arts Center, which 
should address maintenance, insurance, and other issues relative to the sculpture. The 
motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

Consideration of a Request for a Special Event Fee Waiver from the Greater 
Newport Chamber of Commerce for the 2014 Seafood and Wine Festival. Lorna Davis, 
Executive Director of the Greater Newport Chamber of Commerce, reported that the 
issue before Council is consideration of a special event permit fee waiver request for the 
Greater Newport Chamber of Commerce for the 2014 Seafood and Wine Festival to be 
held on February 20, 21, 22, and 23, 2014. Busby asked whether there are changes to 
this year’s Festival. Davis reported that there will be no general admission on Saturday 
unless all e-tickets are not sold.  Sawyer asked whether there have been clarifications 
regarding what the Festival ticket includes. Davis noted that it would be good to have a 
permanent structure, as the Festival costs exceed $500,000 including some in-kind. She 
added that the net is part of the Chamber’s operating budget. Allen asked whether the 
net was increasing, and Davis reported that the larger tent has increased the cost of the 
event, and the Chamber nets approximately $125,000 - $130,000.  

MOTION was made by Sawyer, seconded by Beemer, to approve the special event 
permit request for the Greater Newport Chamber of Commerce for its 37th annual 
Seafood and Wine Festival to occur on February 20, 21, 22, and 23, 2014, as the event 
complies with special event permit criteria and guidelines, and to transfer $4,200 from 
the Transient Room Tax Fund to the General Fund representing a contribution by the 
city of 35% of the estimated total city costs, the balance of which will be invoiced to the 
Chamber. A condition of approval is that the Community Development Department 
authorizes the temporary structure permit, and the temporary signage request, and that 
signs not be placed to create a hazard to pedestrian or vehicular traffic such as 
obstructing sight distance or other views. A further condition is that where public or 
emergency access could be blocked or impeded, event organizers are required to 
consult with the Fire and Police Departments prior to the event. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. Allen asked whether the percentage of the waiver has 
been formalized in a policy, and Hawker noted that it had not.  

 
Notice of Intent to Award a Bid for the 2013 Street Overlay Project. Gross reported 

that the issue before Council is the consideration of issuance of an intent to award the 
2013 street overlay program bid to Road and Driveway Company in the amount of 
$174,736.20. 



MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by Busby, that the City of Newport Public 
Works Department issue a Notice of Intent to Award the 2013 Street Overlay Program 
project to Road and Driveway Company in the amount of $174,736.20, and contingent 
upon no protest, authorize award and direct the City Manager to execute the contract 
after seven days on behalf of the City of Newport. The motion carried unanimously in a 
voice vote. 

 
Consideration of Resolution No. 3653 Providing for Budget Transfers and Making 

Appropriations Changes for the Fiscal Year 2013/2014. Gazewood reported that the 
issue before Council is consideration of Resolution No. 3653 which would provide for 
budget transfers and make appropriation changes consistent with Resolution No. 3634, 
the resolution adopting the fiscal year 2013/2014 budget and making appropriations. He 
noted that this resolution corrects entries in the budget document for various funds that 
caused out-of-balance conditions between funds and/or line item entries were transfer 
items that were allocated to inappropriate expenditure line items. 

MOTION was made by Saelens, seconded by Beemer, to adopt Resolution No. 3653 
with Attachment “A,” a resolution providing for budget transfers and making 
appropriation changes for fiscal year 2013/2014. The motion carried unanimously in a 
voice vote. 

 
Consideration of Resolution No. 3654 Providing for a Supplemental Budget and 

Making Appropriations Changes for Fiscal Year 2013/2014. Gazewood reported that the 
issue before Council is consideration of Resolution No. 3654 which would adopt a 
supplemental budget to increase appropriations in the General Fund for certain 
departments, and to decrease appropriations in the Public Works Administration Fund 
and the Airport Fund. He added that the resolution corrects entries in the budget 
document for the two funds that caused out-of-balance conditions between funds and/or 
insufficient funding. 

Allen thanked Gazewood for his detailed investigative work and fixing a lot of these 
things. 

MOTION as made by Beemer, seconded by Allen, to adopt Resolution No. 3654 with 
Attachment “A,” a resolution adopting a supplemental budget for fiscal year 2013/2014 
and making appropriation decreases and changes for fiscal year 2013/2014. The motion 
carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

 
Consideration of Resolution No. 3659 Regarding the Annual Adjustment to the City’s 

System Development Charge Rates. Tokos reported that the issue before Council is 
consideration of Resolution No. 3659 regarding the annual adjustment to the SDC rates. 
He noted that the adjustment is based on the difference in construction costs included in 
the Construction Cost Index published in the Engineering News Record. 

Allen asked whether legal counsel has indicated that public comment is sufficient on 
this Resolution, as opposed to a public hearing, and Tokos noted that legal counsel 
concurs that public comment is sufficient. 

MOTION was made by Saelens, seconded by Beemer, to adopt Resolution No 3659, 
amending the City of Newport System Development Charge rates to reflect annual 
changes in construction costs. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

 



Consideration of Resolution No. 3651 Regarding the Closure of the Newport Urban 
Renewal Plan. Tokos reported that the issue before Council is consideration of 
Resolution No. 3651 regarding the closure of the Northside Urban Renewal District. He 
noted that the last debt obligation is with the City of Newport, pursuant to an 
intergovernmental agreement between the URA and the city, dated December 8, 2010. 
He stated that if the city accepts the debt obligation has been satisfied, the Newport 
Urban Renewal Plan will officially close. 

MOTION was made by Allen, seconded by Sawyer, to adopt Resolution No. 3651 
acknowledging that the Newport Urban Renewal Agency has satisfied the terms of its 
December 8, 2010 intergovernmental agreement with the City of Newport and that the 
Newport Urban Renewal Plan be terminated. The motion carried unanimously in a voice 
vote. 

 
Initiation of Amendments to Ordinance No. 1931 and Associated Settlement 

Agreement Related to the Intersection of SE 40th Street and US 101 in South Beach. 
Tokos reported that the issue before Council is consideration of whether it is in the 
public interest for the city to participate in amending a settlement agreement and to 
initiate revisions to Ordinance No. 1931, both of which relate to the 2007 annexation of 
the Oregon Coast Community College District, Landwaves, Inc., Emery Investments, 
Inc., and GVR Investments properties. He added that the proposed amendments lift 
restrictions on the number of vehicle trips that can be generated from development of 
the annexed parcels at the intersection of SE 40th Street and US 101. He noted that 
such restrictions were enacted to meet the state’s Transportation Planning Rule, and will 
no longer be needed once the Oregon Transportation Commission accepts a program 
for improving the transportation network as outlined in recent city and country 
Transportation System Plan amendments and enacts more lenient mobility targets for 
US 101 in South Beach, as the Commission is scheduled to do on December 18, 2013. 
Allen asked for confirming e-mail regarding OTC action. 

MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by Saelens, to authorize the Mayor to 
enter into an amendment to the 2007 Annexation Settlement Agreement that is 
substantially similar to the draft presented this evening, and clarifies the intent to 
terminate the obligations and limitations in the 2007 Annexation Settlement Agreement. 
The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

A discussion ensued regarding the approval of the initiation of the amendments to 
Ordinance No. 1931 prior to action by the OTC. It was agreed to add a clause to the 
motion to indicate that the initiation of amendments is based on OTC approval of the 
settlement agreement which should occur on 12/18/13. 

MOTION was made by Allen, seconded by Busby, that based on OTC approval of 
the settlement agreement which should come on 12/18/13, to initiate amendments to 
Ordinance No. 1931, an ordinance that approved the annexation and established zoning 
for the affected properties so that the vehicle trip caps and related limitations are 
removed. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

 
Selection of Council Liaison to Group Supporting the VAC Re-Envisioning Process. 

Saelens reported that Swanson had a scheduling conflict with the first meeting of the 
VAC re-envisioning group, and that he had attended in her stead. He noted that the 
meeting was very well attended, constructive, and organized. He added that the next 



meeting is scheduled for January 4, 2014, from 1:30 – 3:30 P.M. Swanson volunteered 
to be the liaison to the group supporting the VAC re-envisioning process, with Saelens 
as the alternate. Council concurred. 

 
COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

 
 Swanson asked whether a Town Hall meeting was planned since December had a 
fifth Monday. Hawker noted that no Town Hall meeting had been planned due to the 
holidays. 
 Sawyer reported that he attended a recent meeting of the Destination Newport 
Committee. He noted that the Corvallis Knights, a minor league baseball team, has 
requested funding, and this would be great for the city as folks could attend the game 
and drive to the beach. 
 Saelens reported that he had attended the recent Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee meeting, and that the end results were covered at the work session held 
earlier today. 
 Saelens reported that the pool bond measure has been discussed at the Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Committee meeting. 
 Busby reported on a recent meeting of the Airport Committee, noting that Jim 
Hawley, chair and member for 15 years, had resigned. He added that the Committee is 
working on significant issues including Part 139 certification, minimum standards, and 
insurance requirements.  
 Beemer reported that he had attended a reception at the Port of Newport to meet the 
Port Manager candidates. He added that the Port intends to name a replacement for Oly 
Olson tomorrow night. 
 Allen noted that the employee awards banquet was nice. 
 Busby noted that when Smith got up to speak at the employee awards banquet, he 
received a round of applause, and that was the best evaluation he could have had.  
 Allen reported that he will give a detailed report on activities of the Oregon Marine 
Experiment Station Advisory Board at the next meeting. He noted that he has the annual 
report and will leave it in the Council office and provide a copy to Nebel and Hawker. He 
added that Bob Cowan, director of the HMSC, will provide an update on the marine 
studies campus at the next meeting. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 Marletta Noe wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a more prosperous new year. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:50 P.M. 
 
 
 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 
Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder    Sandra N. Roumagoux, Mayor 



 



December 16, 2013 
11:00 A.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

 
Councilors present: Roumagoux, Saelens, Beemer, Busby, Allen (arrived at 11:27 A.M.), 
and Swanson. Sawyer was excused.  

 
Staff present: Nebel, Smith, Hawker, Tokos, Gazewood, Gross, and Miranda. 
 
Media present: Larry Coonrod from the Lincoln County Dispatch, and Dave Morgan from 
News Lincoln County. 
 
Others in attendance: Alisha Kerns, Maryann Bozza, and Bob Hein (arrived at 11:22 A.M.) 
from the Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee. Ken Dennis was also in attendance. 
 
Roumagoux called the meeting to order and introduced Spencer Nebel, City Manager. 
 
Roll was taken and individual audience members were introduced. 
 
1. Members of the Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee were present to delineate the 

Committee’s project priorities. Saelens reported that the Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee update to Council is a first step in the refocusing of the Committee. He 
added that he has an action item associated with this update. Maryann Bozza, Chair 
of the Committee, introduced Alisha Kern (Committee member). Bozza stated that the 
Committee has been very active. She gave a brief PowerPoint presentation that 
included: who we (the Committee) are; what we do; the fact that the Newport 
Pedestrian and Bicycle Plan is a part of the TSP; completed projects; and priorities for 
the coming year. Bozza reviewed the priorities: 1. Sharrows on city streets; 2. Trail – 
NW Nye Street to Oceanview Drive; 3. Trail connecting Agate Beach Wayside Trail to 
sidewalk on Highway 101 west; and 4. Sidewalks from the Bayfront to the hospital. 
With each project, she reviewed the problem, solution, status, and what is needed. 
Roumagoux asked about the bicycling events held at the Wilder development, and a 
brief discussion ensued about those events and their growing status among bicycle 
groups. Beemer provided an update on the Corvallis to Coast Trail. Saelens 
introduced and recognized Ken Dennis, former Chair of the Bicycle/Pedestrian 
Advisory Committee, who had recently resigned from the Committee. Saelens noted 
that a goal of this presentation was to get the Committee goals into a system of 
tracking and budgeting. He asked whether there is another source of funding that 
could be earmarked for this Committee. It was noted that there are vacancies on the 
Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee, and that the packet contains applications 
from three people that have been interviewed and forwarded to the Mayor for 
appointment. It was mentioned that the applicants represent the pedestrians in the 
community. Saelens noted that the goal is that it become a Committee that works on 
all aspects of multi-modal transportation issues. Ken Dennis reported that Council had 



adopted a Complete Streets resolution in 2010, and that this resolution addresses 
multi-modal transportation, and could be used toward achieving Committee multi-
modal goals. Kerns emphasized the importance of a north/south route through the city 
that allows bicyclists to avoid Highway 101. It was noted that Oceanview Drive is 
dangerous. Saelens reiterated that the goal is to find a way for the Committee to move 
forward more effectively with the city to accomplish priorities. He added that he would 
like a concept to be finalized so that the Committee and City Council and staff know 
how to move forward. Busby asked whether anyone had looked at SE Fogarty Street. 
Nebel suggested that the logical way to proceed would be to refer the matter to city 
administration and allow staff to develop a report and return to Council with information 
on how the Committee’s priorities fit into the city’s long range plans. He noted that this 
could be done by the first meeting in February. Bozza reported that the four projects 
identified by the Bicycle/Pedestrian Committee have been prioritized by number on 
the handout she distributed at the beginning of the meeting. She added that a 
Committee goal is to learn how to better interact with the city. She asked about the 
next step. Gross reported that part of the staff review will be to look at the proposed 
projects, challenges, and costs and report to the City Manager regarding 
implementation and how to proceed. Hein reported that the sharrow project and the 
sidewalk project are both projects that are ready to go, but that the other two prioritized 
projects are concepts at this time. Bozza noted that the Committee’s frustration is that 
it is unsure where it fits in the city operation. She stated that she is pleased with the 
connection and looks forward to hearing from Council and staff. Kerns reiterated the 
need for a route to get bicyclists from one end of the city to the other, and noted that 
the sharrows stand out. Hein stated that he was pleased with a more established 
conduit for the Committee to work with. Saelens thanked the Committee, City Council, 
and staff. 

2. A discussion ensued regarding the formation of a business license review task force. 
Busby reported that he had suggested a group to review the existing business license 
ordinance for several reasons, including: issuance process; inequalities in the types 
of businesses required to have a license; enforcement; inequality in rates as all 
businesses are charged the same regardless of size; the definition of business in 
general; and the ability to enforce the ordinance and measure compliance. Busby 
noted that he was looking for a consensus of Council to move forward. A discussion 
ensued regarding whether the group should be an official task force as authorized and 
defined by Council resolution, or a sub-group authorized by a Council motion. Busby 
suggested that the group be comprised of himself, Saelens, and enforcement, 
planning, finance staff, Rob Connell, and possibly a Planning Commissioner. Busby 
noted that the group could gather information by way of hearings and research of 
records, and ultimately make recommendations on amendments to the existing code. 
He added that he expected the work to take approximately six months. Allen 
suggested a sub-group of the City Council and noted that sub-groups have regularly 
noticed meetings that the public is allowed to attend. Nebel noted that a work group is 
a good start with staff involvement and hearings at the Council level. MOTION was 
made by Allen, seconded by Beemer, to form a sub-group of the City Council to consist 
of Busby and Saelens, along with staff designated by the City Manager, and perhaps 
a Planning Commission member to look at proposed revisions to the business license 



ordinance and return to Council with recommendations. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 

3. Swanson asked about the status of the taxicab ordinance, and it was noted that the 
matter is on hold until City Attorney Connell returns to work. 

4. Swanson asked about the traffic hazards that Warren Chopp addressed during the 
recent hearing on the Teevin Brothers Traffic Impact Analysis relative to the addition 
of a no passing zone on Yaquina Bay Road, and the possible relocation of mailboxes 
at Running Springs Drive and Yaquina Bay Road. Tokos reported that staff will be 
looking at potential solutions and returning to City Council with proposed next steps. 

5. Beemer suggested adding the review and discussion of the sale of some of the city 
properties to an upcoming work session agenda. 

6. Busby asked about the status of the suggestion to remove stop signs near the high 
school. Miranda reported that staff opted to leave the stop signs in place. 

7. Gazewood reported that the city is in the final stages of closing on the general 
obligation bonds for the new municipal indoor swimming pool. He stated that the 
closing is scheduled for 9 A.M. on Thursday. He added that the bids were opened last 
Thursday and that there were four bids. He reviewed the bids noting that the winning 
bid was submitted by Janney, Montgomery, Scott, LLC, an investment house. He 
reported that the net proceeds to the city will be $8.2 million, which will be in the city’s 
account by 9 A.M. on Thursday. Gazewood noted that a good faith deposit, in the 
amount of $790,000, was received last Friday. Allen asked whether Gazewood 
needed Council action relative to the reserves, and Gazewood noted that he did not 
as these funds would be deposited in the State Local Investment Pool. A discussion 
ensued regarding the possibility of grant funds that could offset the cost of the pool 
project. Nebel noted that bonds are for a specific project, and the remaining funds, and 
the fund reserve, should be used to help pay the debt. Gazewood added that grants 
could help reduce the property taxes, but he cautioned about jeopardizing the city’s 
tax exempt status. Gazewood addressed the concern, expressed in a letter from 
Standard and Poors, about the city’s projected ending fund balance as of June 30, 
2013. He noted that if the city fails to maintain a proper fund balance, it could be 
subjected to further review. Nebel concurred that the city needs to keep its fund 
balances sound. He added that he wants to understand Oregon budget law, and he 
expects the budget process to be clearer, more helpful, and with meaningful numbers 
at the end of the process. 

 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 12:43 P.M. 
 

 



 



Committee Re-Appointments 2014 

Re-Appointments 
 
*Planning Commission 
(3 year terms-ending 12/31/16) 
-Jim Patrick 
 
*Budget Committee 
(3 year terms-ending 12/31/16) 
-Fred Springsteen 
-Robert Smith 
 
*Airport Committee 
(2 year terms-ending 12/31/15) 
-Mark Watkins 
-Douglas Nebert 
 
*Library Board 
(4 year terms- ending 12/31/17) 
-Carol Ruggeri 
 
*Parks and Recreation Committee 
(2 year term- ending 12/31/15) 
-Jimmy Rodriguez 
-Sandra Surber 
-Nancy Steinberg 
 
*Destination Newport 
(1 year term-ending 12/31/14) 
-Lil Patrick 
-John Clark 
-Ric Rabourn 
-Lorna Davis 
-Carrie Lewis 
 
*Senior Advisory Committee 
(2 year term- ending 12/31/15) 
-Richard Reynolds 
 
*Bike/Ped. Advisory Committee 
(3 year term-ending 12/31/16) 
-Alisha Kern 
 
 
 



 



From: Councilor David Allen 
To: Newport City Council and 
 Infrastructure Task Force 
Re: Jan. 6, 2014 Council Meeting 
 
The enclosed report is the result of a process undertaken by the task force over the past five 
months and 10 meetings, per the direction in the enclosed resolution that established the task 
force in June 2013. 
 
Also enclosed is the 5-year plan to increase utility rates and fees the city implemented in 
2012, but which the council and budget committee recognized in the last budget process 
“can create a financial hardship for residents and businesses,” as noted in the resolution. 
 
As chair of the task force, I’d like to thank the task force members and city staff for the 
time and effort put into this process.  Consensus was reached on all the bullet points in the 
report.  The information used by the task force in developing the report can be accessed 
online at http://www.thecityofnewport.net/citygov/comm/itf.asp. 
 
At the last task force meeting, it was noted the council and city staff would need to evaluate 
and determine any preference among the funding options listed in the report.  Not only for 
the upcoming budget process with the budget committee, but also on an ongoing basis. 
 
Enc: Task force report 
 Res. 3637 
 5-year plan 



Page 1 of 5 

Report from the Newport Infrastructure Task Force – Jan. 6, 
2014 Council Meeting 

Newport Mission Statement 

The City of Newport pledges to effectively manage essential community services for the 
well-being and public safety of residents and visitors. The City will encourage economic 
diversification, sustainable development, and livability (revised April 1, 2013). 

General Assumptions 

•     City has a responsibility to fund the maintenance and improvements of its capital 
assets.  Capital assets include city-owned infrastructure, facilities and other 
improvements that provide services to the public, usually with benefits to the 
community at-large as well as the direct user. 

•     Capital assets considered by the Task Force include: 

o     Water Infrastructure 

o     Wastewater Infrastructure 

o     Stormwater Infrastructure 

o     Streets 

o     Rights-of-way (lighting, landscaping, incidental structures) 

o     City facilities (buildings, parks, public parking lots, public piers, etc.) 

The issue of rolling stock (fire engines, heavy equipment, police vehicles, etc.) 
was discussed, but is not factored into the Task Force recommendations. 

•     Assumed need for annual investments to upgrade capital assets moving forward: 

o     Water – $1.5 million (2013 dollars) 

o     Wastewater – $1.5 million (2013 dollars) 

o     Stormwater – $ Not available 

o     Streets (including rights-of-way) – $ Not available 

o     City Facilities – $ Not available 



Page 2 of 5 

Where figures were not available, estimates will need to be prepared to inform 
upcoming budget discussions.  The Task Force recommends that this take place 
no later than March 1, 2014.  It is understood that such estimates will be subject to 
change as capital facility plans are prepared and updated. 

Potential Near-Term (1-5yr) Recommendations: 

•     These potential recommendations were prepared with the understanding that funding 
capital project needs is necessary both in the near term and long term, with an eye 
toward minimizing financial hardship for residents and businesses and ensuring 
equitable contributions from both existing and future users. 

•     A number of options for funding capital project needs were discussed, including: 

o     Consider continuing “pay as you go” approach that relies upon utility rate 
increases to pay for capital project needs.  This includes continuing the 5-year 
plan to increase water and sewer rates that calls for water rate increases at 
10% in FY15 and FY16, and an 8% increase in FY17, with 5% increases each 
year thereafter.  Sewer rates would increase 15% in FY15, and 10% in FY16 
and FY17, with 5% increases each year thereafter.  Stormwater and 
Infrastructure fees would increase 5% each year.  

o     Consider a budget strategy that leverages utility revenues to secure 
loans/revenue bonds for needed capital projects in lieu of the remaining years 
of the 5-year plan for rate increases.  Future water and wastewater rate 
changes would be limited to inflationary adjustments and debt service 
requirements. Stormwater and Infrastructure fees would increase at least 5% 
each year. 

o     Consider general obligation bonds as a potential financing option for discrete 
facilities that serve the broader community. 

o     Continue to pursue grants to fund capital project needs, recognizing that 
these funding opportunities have administrative requirements that influence 
timelines and the scope of projects, and are not available for all types of work. 

o     Evaluate whether or not a new tax is a viable funding option, if it can capture 
more tourism dollars to help pay for capital infrastructure needs.  An example 
discussed is a food and beverage sales tax imposed by cities such as Ashland 
and Yachats. 

o     Consider looking at annexation and urban renewal as opportunities to expand 
and grow the City’s tax base over time so that it is more capable of meeting its 
capital project needs with existing funding sources. 



Page 3 of 5 

o     Consider whether a policy option package should be prepared for Budget 
Committee and Council consideration that eliminates payment of the in lieu of 
franchise fees from the Water and Wastewater (Sewer) Funds into the General 
Fund, which started in FY03. 

•     Consider developing a comprehensive 10-year prospective debt schedule across all 
city departments to ensure viability of financing City’s capital infrastructure needs. 

•     Consider reevaluating the City’s reserve policy to ensure that it meets, but does not 
exceed, best management practices. 

•     Consider adjusting the City’s utility rates to include a viable low-income assistance 
program. 

•     Consider adjusting the City’s utility rates to ensure equitable cost sharing among all 
users. 

•     Consider developing incentives for water conservation. 

•     Pursue changes to the format of the City’s utility bills to show more information 
about how the fees are used along with a glossary of terms. 

•     Consider developing level of service standards (e.g. extent to which streets are 
maintained, swept, etc.). 

•     Prioritizing services and associated funding should be considered as part of the 
Council goal setting process and should be informed by past decisions and also 
feedback from the public, staff and other stakeholders. 

•     Support efforts to complete the City’s facility master plans where they haven’t been 
developed so that the community has an accurate assessment of its near and long term 
capital infrastructure needs. 

•     Support efforts to map the location and assess the condition of the City’s water, 
sewer, storm drainage and street infrastructure, so that the information can be used to 
inform service priorities. 

Potential Long-Term (Ongoing) Recommendations: 

•     Support efforts to update the City’s facility master plans so that the community has 
an accurate assessment of its near and long term capital infrastructure needs. 

•     Critically evaluate proposed projects in the City’s facility master plans to ensure that 
they reflect what is realistically expected within the planning period as these plans 
serve as the foundation for future funding decisions. 



Page 4 of 5 

•     Comprehensively evaluate utilization of existing facilities to see if cost savings can 
be achieved through consolidating space usage, reduced utility expenses, etc. 

•     Support ongoing efforts to map the location and assess the condition of the City’s 
water, sewer, storm drainage and street infrastructure, so that the information can be 
used to inform service priorities. 

•     Consider developing level of service standards (e.g. extent to which streets are 
maintained, swept, etc.). 

•     Explore opportunities to more equitably distribute costs and/or achieve 
organizational efficiencies for services that provide regional benefit (e.g. regional fire 
authority, regional airport authority, county street lighting district). 

•     Follow through with the policy and action items related to the provision of 
infrastructure contained in the Economic Opportunity Analysis that the City 
completed in 2012. 

•     Recognize that measures should be put in place to periodically check and verify that 
selected recommendations are achieving desired outcomes. 

Appendices 

The above recommendations were developed and informed by the following information, 
which can be accessed online at http://www.thecityofnewport.net/citygov/comm/itf.asp 

12/19/2013 Mtg Handout-Water Rate and Cost Analysis 
12/19/2013 Mtg Handout - Typical NW Residential Monthly Bill 
12/19/2013 Option-2 Wastewater Fund Analysis 
12/19/2013 Option-2 Water Fund Analysis 
12/19/2013 Mtg Handout - OR Coast Water and Sewer Rate Comparison 
12/19/2013 ITF-Draft Recommendations with attachments 
12/5/2013 Mtg Material Gazewood email Regarding--S-P Rating 
12/5/2013 Infrastructure Information Cities 
11/21/2013 11-21-13 Mtg Material-Wastewater Option 
11/21/2013 11-21-13 Mtg Material-Water Option 
11/7/2013 ITF meeting discussion 11-07-13 
10/31/2013 Discussion ITF 10-31-13 
10/10/2013 Potential Funding Sources - Bullet List 
10/10/2013 City Properties 2013 
10/10/2013 Bond Rating and Debt Rpt-10-10-13 
10/10/2013 Chase-Park PwrPt Oct-10-2013 
9/19/2013 Mtg Material-Chase Park Monthly Rpt 
9/19/2013 Mtg Material-List of Grants 



Page 5 of 5 

9/19/2013 Mtg Material-FY-14 5-year CIP APPROVED 6-17-13 
9/19/2013 Mtg Material-Npt Strategic Funding Plan FYE2014-9.17.13 
9/19/2013 Sched-A-Existing Revenues Sources- Bonded Indebtedness 
9/19/2013 Sched-B-Existing Revenues Sources - Special Revenue 
9/19/2013 Sched-C-Existing Revenues Sources - SDC Funds 
9/19/2013 Sched-D-Existing Revenues Sources - Capital Projects Fund 
9/5/2013 Mtg Materials City-Owned Properties Maps 
9/5/2013 Mtg Material-2008 Water System Master Plan 
9/5/2013 Mtg Material-Npt Ped-Bike Plan 7-2008 
9/5/2013 Mtg Material-SB Strmwtr Master Plan 2004 
9/5/2013 Mtg Material-TGM SB Peninsula Trans Refinement Plan 
9/5/2013 Mtg Material-Wastewater Facilities Plan 1996 
9/5/2013 Projects Under the TSP 
8/15/2013 PowerPoint Presentation 8-15-13 

 



CITY OF NEWPORT 

RESOLUTION NO. 3637 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING 
AN INFRASTRUCTURE TASK FORCE 

WHEREAS, the City Council and Budget Committee recognize the need for consistent 
and long-term public infrastructure investment; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council and Budget Committee recognize that utility rates and 
fees can create a financial hardship for residents and businesses; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council and Budget Committee desire to explore different and 
various funding options for public infrastructure investment; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council, in consultation with the Budget Committee, has 
determined that a task force should be established to study this issue and forward 
recommendations to the City Council. 

The City of Newport Resolves as follows: 

Section 1. 	The City Council establishes an Infrastructure Task Force with the following 
members: 

David Allen, City Councilor 
Ralph Busby, City Councilor 
Mark Saelens, City Councilor 
Patricia Patrick-Joling, Budget Committee 
Fred Springsteen, Budget Committee 
Mark McConnell, former Mayor 

Section 2. 	The Task Force will consult with the Public Works Director, Finance 
Director, Community Development Director, and other city staff, as needed, in studying 
this issue. 

Section 3. 	The Task Force will forward recommendations to the City Council for 
consideration and a potential plan of action. 

Section 4. 	The Task Force will complete its task by the regular City Council meeting of 
January 6, 2014. 

Section 5. 	This resolution is effective upon adoption. 



Sandra N. Rou agoux, Mayor 

argaret M . Hawker, 	Recorder 

Adopted by the Newport City Council on June 17, 2013. 

ATTEST: 



5 Year Scenario

Period
Infrastructure 

Fee Water Sewer
Storm Water 

Fee
Total Projected 
Utility Billing Water Wastewater

Stormwater and 
Infrastructure 

Fee

Cost per 
gallon 
Water

Cost per gallon 
Wastewater

Current $5.65 $24.70 $37.35 $0.00 $67.70 $0.004 $0.006
FY2013 $5.93 $28.41 $44.82 $6.80 $85.96 15% 20% 5% $0.005 $0.007
FY2014 $6.23 $32.67 $51.54 $7.14 $97.58 15% 15% 5% $0.005 $0.009
FY2015 $6.54 $35.93 $59.27 $7.50 $109.24 10% 15% 5% $0.006 $0.010
FY2016 $6.87 $39.53 $65.20 $7.87 $119.47 10% 10% 5% $0.007 $0.011
FY2017 $7.21 $42.69 $71.72 $8.27 $129.89 8% 10% 5% $0.007 $0.012
FY2018 $7.57 $44.82 $75.31 $8.68 $136.38 5% 5% 5% $0.007 $0.013
FY2019 $7.95 $47.06 $79.07 $9.11 $143.20 5% 5% 5% $0.008 $0.013
FY2020 $8.35 $49.42 $83.03 $9.57 $150.36 5% 5% 5% $0.008 $0.014
FY2021 $8.77 $51.89 $87.18 $10.05 $157.88 5% 5% 5% $0.009 $0.015
FY2022 $9.20 $54.48 $91.54 $10.55 $165.77 5% 5% 5% $0.009 $0.015

* Residential Monthly Bill Example: 3/4" meter at 5000 GAL

Example Monthly Bills* Annual Rate Revenue Increases

5/14/2012



 



c.breves
Typewritten Text

c.breves
Typewritten Text
IX.A.









































































































 Agenda Item #   IX.B. 
 Meeting Date     January 6, 2014  
 

 
CITY OF NEWPORT AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

City Of Newport, Oregon 
 
Issue/Agenda Title: Resolution regarding Tax-Exempt Bond Post-Issuance Compliance Policy 
Prepared By: Gazewood    Dept Head Approval:     City Mgr Approval:    
 
Issue Before the Council:  After issuance of Bonds, an issuer is required under Federal law to 
continually monitor the actual investment and expenditure of the proceeds of the Bonds and 
the use of the facilities financed with such proceeds.  The monitoring process and collection of 
information must be maintained as long as tax-exempt bonds, including refunding bonds, are 
outstanding plus three (3) years after the last bond is retired.  Some of the ongoing monitoring 
requirements include: 
 

 Retaining a nationally-recognized bond counsel law firm to assist in issuing Bonds and 
provide legal opinion on such Bonds. 

 Adherence to tax requirements as set forth in the Tax Certificate executed in connection 
with the Bond issue. 

 Monitor the use and timely expenditure of Bond proceeds. 

 Ensure that the Project is owned and operated by the Issuer for the life of the Bond issue. 

 Monitor and track investment earnings on Bond proceeds to comply with applicable yield 
restrictions and/or rebate requirements. 

 Ensure that all relevant documents and records will be maintained by the issuer for the 
term of the Bond issue (including refunding Bonds) plus three (3) years.  (Three (3) years 
after the final maturity or redemption date of any issue of Bonds). 

 
Bond Counsel (Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP) has suggested that the City adopt written 
procedures to assist in this monitoring process.  While post-issuance compliance procedures 
are not mandated by the IRS, Bond Counsel has advised that the IRS has provided an incentive 
in the form of reduced penalties in the event that there is an inadvertent tax violation after 
issuance of Bonds if written procedures are in place. 
 
The Tax-Exempt Bond Post-Issuance Compliance Policy presented to you as Exhibit A to the 
Resolution herewith requires the City Manager to assign to the Finance Director or identify the 
officer or other employee(s) of the City the responsibility of monitoring the post-issuance 
compliance procedures and taking the appropriate actions to ensure compliance.  Such 
responsible employee(s) is designated as the “Bond Compliance Officer” pursuant to the Policy.  
This Policy provides for the required annual compliance reporting to the IRS on or before 
December 31st of each annual period. 
 

         Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommends adoption of this resolution. 
 
Proposed Motion: I move to adopt Resolution No. 3661, a resolution adopting a tax-exempt 
bond post-issuance compliance policy.  



 
Other Alternatives Considered:             Continue the present practice of informal and unwritten 
procedures. 
 
Fiscal Notes:  If written procedures are in place, and “if there is a change in use of a bond-
financed facility in a way that causes tax issues, an issuer who discovered the problematic 
change in use pursuant to its post-issuance procedures is entitled to pay a reduced amount if 
the change is such that a monetary settlement to the IRS is required to resolve the tax issue.”  
The foregoing quote has been provided by Bond Counsel. 
  
 



RESOLUTION NO.  3661 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING TAX-EXEMPT BOND 

POST-ISSUANCE COMPLIANCE POLICY 

 

WHEREAS, after issuance of Bonds, the City is required under Federal Law to continually 

monitor the actual investment and expenditure of the proceeds of the Bonds (including 

refunding Bonds) and the use of the facilities financed with such proceeds; and 

WHEREAS, the City currently has an informal and unwritten monitoring process; and 

WHEREAS, Bond Counsel has recommended that the City adopt a formal and written policy 

on monitoring the actual investment and expenditure of the proceeds of the Bonds (including 

refunding Bonds) and the use of the facilities financed with such proceeds; and 

WHEREAS, Bond Counsel has advised that the IRS has provided an incentive in the form of 

reduced penalties in the event that there is an inadvertent tax violation after issuance of Bonds 

if written procedures are in place. 

THE CITY OF NEWPORT RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:  The attached Tax-Exempt 

Bond Post-Issuance Compliance Policy (Exhibit A) is hereby adopted. 

This resolution will become effective immediately upon passage. 

 

Adopted by the Newport City Council on ____________________________________, 2014. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Sandra N. Roumagoux, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

CITY OF NEWPORT, OREGON 

TAX-EXEMPT BOND POST-ISSUANCE COMPLIANCE POLICY 

ADOPTED JANUARY 6, 2014 

I.  

PURPOSE. 

The purpose of this Policy is to ensure that the City of Newport (the “Issuer”) complies with 

applicable requirements of federal tax law necessary to preserve the tax status of interest on tax-exempt 

obligations issued by the Issuer.  This Policy is designed to set forth compliance procedures so that the 

Issuer utilizes the proceeds of all issues of bonds, certificates of participation, bond anticipation notes, and 

tax and revenue anticipation notes (collectively referred to as “Bonds”) in accordance with applicable 

federal tax requirements, and complies with all other applicable federal requirements with respect to 

outstanding Bonds. 

To comply with applicable federal tax requirements, the Issuer must confirm that the 

requirements are met at the time each Bond issue is issued and throughout the term of the Bonds (until 

maturity or redemption).  Generally, compliance should include retention of records relating to the 

expenditure of the proceeds of each Bond issue, the investment of the proceeds of each Bond issue, and 

any allocations made with respect to the use of the proceeds of each Bond issue, sufficient to establish 

compliance with applicable federal tax requirements, including records related to periods before the 

Bonds are issued (e.g., in the case of reimbursement of prior expenditures) until three (3) years after the 

final maturity or redemption date of any issue of Bonds. 

II.  

PROCEDURES. 

A. Responsible Official.  The City Manager of the Issuer will assign to the Finance Director 

or identify the officer or other employee(s) of the Issuer (the “Bond Compliance Officer”) who will be 

responsible for each of the procedures listed below, notify the current holder of that office of the 

responsibilities, and provide that person a copy of these procedures.  Upon employee transitions, the City 

Manager of the Issuer will advise any newly-designated Bond Compliance Officer of his/her 

responsibilities under these procedures and will ensure the Bond Compliance Officer understands the 



2 

 

importance of these procedures.  If employee positions are restructured or eliminated, the City Manager 

of the Issuer will reassign responsibilities as necessary. 

B. Issuance of Bonds. 

Bond Counsel.  The Issuer will retain a nationally-recognized bond counsel law firm (“Bond 

Counsel”) to assist the Issuer in issuing Bonds.  In connection with any tax-exempt Bond issue, Bond 

Counsel will deliver a legal opinion which will be based in part on covenants and representations set forth 

in the Issuer’s Tax Certificate (or other closing documents containing the tax representation) (the “Tax 

Certificate”) and other certificates relating to the Bonds, including covenants and representations 

concerning compliance with post-issuance federal tax law requirements that must be satisfied to preserve 

the tax-exempt status of tax-exempt Bonds.  As described more fully below, the Issuer will also consult 

with Bond Counsel and other legal counsel and advisors, as needed, following issuance of each Bond 

issue to ensure that applicable post-issuance requirements in fact are met, so that tax-exempt status of 

interest will be maintained for federal income tax purposes so long as any Bonds remain outstanding. 

The Bond Compliance Officer and/or other designated Issuer personnel will consult with Bond 

Counsel and other legal counsel and advisors, as needed, throughout the Bond issuance process to identify 

requirements and to establish procedures necessary or appropriate so that that tax-exempt status of interest 

will be maintained.  Those requirements and procedures shall be documented in a Tax Certificate and 

other certificates and/or other documents finalized at or before issuance of the Bonds.  If there is no 

document in the transcript titled “Tax Certificate,” the Bond Compliance Officer and/or other designated 

Issuer personnel will consult with Bond Counsel prior to the closing of the financing to understand which 

document(s) in the transcript contain the tax representations and covenants. The requirements and 

procedures in the Tax Certificate shall include future compliance with applicable arbitrage rebate 

requirements and all other applicable post-issuance requirements of federal tax law throughout (and in 

some cases beyond) the term of the Bonds. 

Documentation of Tax Requirements.  The federal tax requirements relating to each Bond issue 

will be set forth in the Tax Certificate executed in connection with the Bond issue, which will be included 

in the closing transcript.  The certifications, representations, expectations, covenants and factual 

statements in the Tax Certificate relate primarily to the restriction on use of the Bond-financed facilities 

by persons or entities other than the Issuer, changes in use of assets financed or refinanced with Bond 

proceeds, restrictions applicable to the investment of Bond proceeds and other moneys relating to the 

Bonds, arbitrage rebate requirements, and economic life of the Bond-financed assets. 



3 

 

Information Reporting.  The Bond Compliance Officer and/or other designated Issuer personnel 

will assure filing of information returns on IRS Form 8038-G no later than the 15th day of the second 

calendar month in the calendar quarter following the calendar quarter in which an issue of Bonds is 

issued.  The Issuer will confirm that the IRS Form 8038-G is accurate and is filed in a timely manner with 

respect to all Bond issues, including any required schedules and attachments.  The IRS Form 8038-G filed 

with the IRS, together with an acknowledgement copy (if available) or IRS Notice CP152, will be 

included as part of the closing transcript for each Bond issue, or kept in the records related to the 

appropriate issue of Bonds. 

C. Application of Bond Proceeds. 

Use of Bond Proceeds.  The Bond Compliance Officer and/or other designated Issuer personnel 

shall: 

* monitor the use of Bond proceeds and the use of the Bond-financed assets 

(e.g., facilities, furnishings or equipment) throughout the term of the Bonds (and in some 

cases beyond the term of the Bonds) to ensure compliance with covenants and restrictions 

set forth in the applicable Tax Certificate; 

* maintain records identifying the assets or portion of assets that were financed or 

refinanced with proceeds of each issue of Bonds; 

* consult with Bond Counsel and other legal counsel as needed in the review of 

any contracts or arrangements involving use of Bond-financed facilities to ensure 

compliance with all covenants and restrictions set forth in the applicable Tax Certificate; 

* maintain records for any contracts or arrangements involving the use of Bond-

financed facilities as might be necessary or appropriate to document compliance with all 

covenants and restrictions set forth in the applicable Tax Certificate; and 

* communicate as necessary and appropriate with personnel responsible for the 

Bond-financed assets to identify and discuss any existing or planned use of the Bond-

financed assets, to ensure that those uses are consistent with all covenants and restrictions 

set forth in the applicable Tax Certificate. 



4 

 

Timely Expenditure of Bond Proceeds.  At the time of issuance of any Bonds issued to fund 

original expenditures, the Issuer must reasonably expect to spend at least 85% of all proceeds expected to 

be used to finance such expenditures (which proceeds would exclude proceeds in a reasonably required 

reserve fund) within three (3) years after issuance of such Bonds.1  In addition, for such Bonds, the Issuer 

must have incurred or expect to incur within six months after issuance original expenditures of not less 

than 5% of such amount of proceeds, and must expect to complete the Bond-financed project (the 

“Project”) and allocate Bond proceeds to costs with due diligence.2  Satisfaction of these requirements 

allows Project-related Bond proceeds to be invested at an unrestricted yield for three (3) years.3  Bonds 

issued to refinance outstanding obligations are subject to separate expenditure requirements, which shall 

be outlined in the Tax Certificate relating to such Bonds.  The Issuer’s finance staff will monitor the 

appropriate capital project accounts (and, to the extent applicable, working capital expenditures and/or 

refunding escrow accounts) and ensure that Bond proceeds are spent within the applicable time period(s) 

required under federal tax law. 

Capital Expenditures.  In general, proceeds (including earnings on original sale proceeds) of 

Bonds issued to fund original expenditures, other than proceeds deposited in a reasonably required 

reserve fund or used to pay costs of issuance, should be spent on capital expenditures.4  For this purpose, 

capital expenditures generally mean costs to acquire, construct, or improve property (land, buildings and 

equipment), or to adapt the property to a new or different use.  The property financed or refinanced must 

have a useful life longer than one (1) year.  Capital Expenditures include design and planning costs 

related to the Project, and include architectural, engineering, surveying, soil testing, environmental, and 

other similar costs incurred in the process of acquiring, constructing, improving or adapting the property.  

Capital Expenditures do not include operating expenses of the Project or incidental or routine repair or 

maintenance of the Project, even if the repair or maintenance will have a useful life longer than one (1) 

year. 

                                                      

1  In the case of short-term working capital financings (e.g., TRANs), the Issuer’s actual maximum cumulative cash flow 

deficit as of the close of the six-month period commencing on the issue date must be at least equal to 100% of the issue price of 

the notes (under the six-month rebate exception, excluding the reasonable working capital reserve) or 90% of the issue price of 

the notes (under the statutory safe harbor exception) in order for the notes to be exempt from the rebate requirements. 

2  These requirements do not apply to short-term working capital financings (e.g., TRANs). 

3  Proceeds of working capital financings (e.g., TRANs) may be invested at an unrestricted yield for thirteen (13) months. 

4  Proceeds of working capital financings (e.g., TRANs) need not be spent for capital expenditures. 



5 

 

D. Use of Bond-Financed Assets. 

Ownership and Use of Project.  For the life of a Bond issue, the Project must be owned and 

operated by the Issuer (or another state or local governmental entity).  At all times while the Bond issue is 

outstanding, no more than 10% (or $15,000,000, if less) of the Bond proceeds or the Project may used, 

directly or indirectly, in a trade or business carried on by a person other than a state or local governmental 

unit (“Private Use”).5  In addition, not more than 5% (or $5 million, if less) of the proceeds of any Bond 

issue may be used, directly or indirectly, to make a loan to any person other than governmental persons.  

Generally, Private Use consists of any contract or other arrangement, including leases, management 

contracts, operating agreements, guarantee contracts, take or pay contracts, output contracts or research 

contracts, which provides for use by a person who is not a state or local government on a basis different 

than the general public.  The Project may be used by any person or entity, including any person or entity 

carrying on any trade or business, if such use constitutes “General Public Use”.  General Public Use is 

any arrangement providing for use that is available to the general public at either no charge or on the basis 

of rates that are generally applicable and uniformly applied. 

Management or Operating Agreements.  Any management, operating or service contracts 

whereby a non-exempt entity is using assets financed or refinanced with Bond proceeds (such as 

bookstore, cafeteria or dining facility, externally-managed parking facilities, gift shops, etc.) must relate 

to portions of the Project that fit within the allowable private use limitations or the contracts must meet 

the IRS safe harbor for management contracts.  Any replacements of or changes to such contracts relating 

to Bond-financed assets or facilities, or leases of such assets or facilities, should be reviewed by Bond 

Counsel.  The Bond Compliance Officer shall contact Bond Counsel if there may be a lease, sale, 

disposition or other change in use of assets financed or refinanced with Bond proceeds. 

Useful Life Limitation.  The weighted average maturity of the Bond issue cannot exceed 120% of 

the weighted average economic life of the Bond-financed assets.  In other words, the weighted average 

economic life of the Project must be at least 80% of the weighted average maturity of the Bond issue.  

Additional state law limitations may apply as well. 

                                                      

5  This 10% limitation is limited to 5% in cases in which the Private Use is either unrelated or disproportionate to the 

governmental use of the financed facility. 



6 

 

G. Investment Restrictions; Arbitrage Yield Calculations; Rebate. 

Investment Restrictions.  Investment restrictions relating to Bond proceeds and other moneys 

relating to the Bonds are set forth in the Tax Certificate.  The Issuer’s finance staff will monitor the 

investment of Bond proceeds to ensure compliance with applicable yield restriction rules. 

Use and Control of Bond Proceeds.  Unexpended Bond proceeds (including reserves) may be 

held directly by the Issuer or by the trustee for the Bond issue under an indenture or trust agreement.  The 

investment of Bond proceeds shall be managed by the Issuer.  The Issuer shall maintain appropriate 

records regarding investments and transactions involving Bond proceeds.  The trustee, if appropriate, 

shall provide regular statements to the Issuer regarding investments and transactions involving Bond 

proceeds. 

Arbitrage Yield Calculations.  Investment earnings on Bond proceeds should be tracked and 

monitored to comply with applicable yield restrictions and/or rebate requirements.  Any funds of the 

Issuer set aside or otherwise pledged or earmarked to pay debt service on Bonds should be analyzed to 

assure compliance with the tax law rules on arbitrage, invested sinking funds, and pledged funds 

(including gifts or donations linked or earmarked to the Bond-financed assets. 

Rebate.  The Issuer is responsible for calculating (or causing the calculation of) rebate liability for 

each Bond issue, and for making any required rebate payments.  Unless Bond Counsel has advised the 

Issuer that the Bonds are exempt from the rebate requirements described in this section, the Issuer will 

retain an arbitrage rebate consultant to perform rebate calculations that may be required to be made from 

time to time with respect to any Bond issue.  The Issuer is responsible for providing the arbitrage rebate 

consultant with requested documents and information on a prompt basis, reviewing applicable rebate 

reports and other calculations and generally interacting with the arbitrage rebate consultant to ensure the 

timely preparation of rebate reports and payment of any rebate. 

The reports and calculations provided by the arbitrage rebate consultant are intended to assure 

compliance with rebate requirements, which require the Issuer to make rebate payments, if any, no later 

than the fifth (5th) anniversary date and each fifth (5th) anniversary date thereafter through the final 

maturity or redemption date of a Bond issue.  A final rebate payment must be made within sixty (60) days 

of the final maturity or redemption date of a Bond issue. 



7 

 

The Issuer will confer and consult with the arbitrage rebate consultant to determine whether any 

rebate spending exceptions may be met.  Rebate spending exceptions are available for periods of 6 

months, 18 months and 2 years.  The Issuer will review the Tax Certificate and/or consult with the 

arbitrage rebate consultant or Bond Counsel for more details regarding the rebate spending exceptions. 

In the case of short-term working capital financings, such as tax and revenue anticipation notes, if 

there is concern as to whether or not the Issuer has met its requisite maximum cumulative cash flow 

deficit with respect to its short-term working capital notes, the services of a rebate analyst should be 

engaged to determine whether either the six-month spending exception or the statutory safe harbor 

exception to the rebate rules is met (in which case no rebate would be owed) or whether the proceeds of 

the notes are subject, in whole or in part, to rebate. 

Copies of all arbitrage rebate reports, related return filings with the IRS (i.e., IRS Form 8038-T), 

copies of cancelled checks with respect to any rebate payments, and information statements must be 

retained as described below.  The responsible official of the Issuer described in Subsection A of this Part 

II will follow the procedures set forth in the Tax Certificate entered into with respect to any Bond issue 

that relate to compliance with the rebate requirements. 

F. Record Retention. 

Allocation of Bond Proceeds to Expenditures.  The Issuer shall allocate Bond proceeds to 

expenditures for assets, and shall trace and keep track of the use of Bond proceeds and property financed 

or refinanced therewith. 

Record Keeping Requirements.  Copies of all relevant documents and records sufficient to 

support an assertion that the tax requirements relating to a Bond issue have been satisfied will be 

maintained by the Issuer for the term of a Bond issue (including refunding Bonds, if any) plus three (3) 

years, including the following documents and records: 

 Bond closing transcripts; 

 Copies of records of investments, investment agreements, credit enhancement 

transactions, financial derivatives (e.g., an interest rate swap), arbitrage reports and 

underlying documents, including trustee statements; 

 Copies of material documents relating to capital expenditures financed or refinanced by 

Bond proceeds, including (without limitation) purchase orders, invoices, trustee 



8 

 

requisitions and payment records, as well as documents relating to costs reimbursed with 

Bond proceeds and records identifying the assets or portion of assets that are financed or 

refinanced with Bond proceeds; 

 All contracts and arrangements involving private use, or changes in use, of the Bond-

financed property; 

 All reports and documents relating to the allocation of Bond proceeds and private use of 

Bond-financed property; and 

 Itemization of property financed with Bond proceeds, including placed in service dates. 

 In the case of short-term working capital financings, such as tax and revenue anticipation 

notes, information regarding the Issuer’s revenue, expenditures and available balances 

sufficient to support the Issuer’s maximum cumulative cash flow deficit. 

III. 

POST-ISSUANCE COMPLIANCE. 

A. In General.  The Issuer will conduct periodic reviews of compliance with these 

procedures to determine whether any violations have occurred so that such violations can be remedied 

through the “remedial action” regulations (Treas. Reg. Section 1.141-12) or the Voluntary Closing 

Agreement Program (VCAP) described in IRS Notice 2008-31 (or successor guidance).  If any changes or 

modifications to the terms or provisions of a Bond issue are contemplated, the Issuer will consult Bond 

Counsel.  The Issuer recognizes and acknowledges that such modifications could result in a “reissuance” 

of the Bonds for federal tax purposes (i.e., a deemed refunding) and thereby jeopardize the tax-exempt 

status of the Bonds after the modifications. 

The Bond Compliance Officer and/or other designated Issuer personnel will consult with Bond 

Counsel and other legal counsel and advisors, as needed, following issuance of each issue of the Bonds to 

ensure that all applicable post-issuance requirements in fact are met, so that interest on the Bonds will be 

excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes so long as any Bonds remain outstanding.  

This will include, without limitation, consultation in connection with future contracts with respect to the 

use of Bond-financed assets and future contracts with respect to the use of output or throughput of Bond-

financed assets. 



9 

 

Whenever necessary or appropriate, the Issuer will engage an expert advisor as arbitrage rebate 

consultant to assist in the calculation of arbitrage rebate payable in respect of the investment of Bond 

proceeds. 

B. Monitoring Private or Other Use of Financed Assets.  The Issuer will maintain records 

identifying the assets or portion of assets that are financed or refinanced with proceeds of a Bond issue, 

including the uses and the users thereof (including terms of use and type of use).  Such records may be 

kept in any combination of paper or electronic form.  In the event the use of Bond proceeds or the assets 

financed or refinanced with Bond proceeds is different from the covenants, representations or factual 

statements in the Tax Certificate, the Issuer will promptly contact and consult with Bond Counsel to 

ensure that there is no adverse effect on the tax-exempt status of the Bond issue and, where appropriate, 

will remedy any violations through the “remedial action” regulations (Treas. Reg. Section 1.141-12), the 

Voluntary Closing Agreement Program (VCAP) described in IRS Notice 2008-31 (or successor 

guidance), or as otherwise prescribed by Bond Counsel. 

 C. Ongoing Training 

Training shall be made available to the Compliance Officer to support the Compliance Officer’s 

understanding of the tax requirements applicable to the Bonds. Such training may include, but would not 

be limited to, attending training sessions at local conferences such as OMFOA and/or OASBO, 

participation in IRS teleconferences, reading technical guidance materials provided by educational 

organizations, the IRS, and/or Bond Counsel, and discussing questions and issues with the Issuer’s Bond 

Counsel and/or arbitrage rebate consultant. 

D. Annual Checklist of Tax-Exempt Bond Compliance Checklist. The Bond Compliance 

Officer will complete the attached “Annual Tax-Exempt Bond Compliance Checklist” with respect to all 

outstanding Bonds on or before December 31st of each annual period.  The Bond Compliance Officer will 

retain a copy of each completed and signed checklist in a file that is retained in accordance with the 

document retention requirements described in Section II.F., above. 



10 

 

Form of Annual Tax-Exempt Bond Compliance Checklist  

(to be completed by the “Bond Compliance Officer” as described in the Tax-Exempt Bond Post-Issuance 

Compliance Policy) 

Date Completed: ________________________________ 

 Yes No 

Has there been a sale of all or any portion of a facility financed with tax-

exempt bonds (a “Project”)? 

  

Has there been a lease of all or any portion of a Project to any party other than 

a state or local government? 

  

Has the Issuer entered into a new, or amended an already existing, 

management or service contract related to a Project? 

  

Has the Issuer entered into a naming rights agreement relating to all or any 

portion of a Project? 

  

Has the Issuer entered into any other arrangement with an entity, other than a 

state or local government, that provided legal rights to that entity with respect 

to a Project?  

  

Will there be a rebate/yield restriction arbitrage computation date during the 

upcoming annual period? 

  

Is the Issuer out of compliance with the record retention requirements as 

described in Section IV of the Tax-Exempt Bond Compliance Procedures? 

  

 

If an answer to any question above is “Yes”, or the answer is unclear, the Bond Compliance Officer shall 

consult with the Issuer’s bond counsel to determine (i) if the event could adversely impact the tax-

exemption of the Issuer’s outstanding tax-exempt bonds and/or (ii) whether any action needs to be taken 

during the upcoming annual period to ensure compliance with the tax-exempt bond restrictions. 

The undersigned is the “Bond Compliance Officer” as described in the Tax-Exempt Bond Compliance 

Procedures and has completed the above checklist to the best of the knowledge of the undersigned. 

 

Signature of ___________________________________________________ 

 

Print Name of __________________________________________________ - Bond Compliance Officer  

   

 



 



Page 1 of 2 

 Agenda Item IX.C.___________ 
 Meeting Date January 6, 2014  
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
City of Newport, Oregon 

 
 
Issue/Agenda Title Annual adjustment to City of Newport Fees for the Review of Land Use Actions__________________ 
 

Prepared By: Derrick Tokos Dept Head Approval:  DT   City Mgr Approval:    
 

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:  A resolution adjusting fees for land use actions to account for annual inflation 
using the Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price Index for Urban Consumers (CPI-U).  If adopted, the changes will 
become effective immediately upon passage. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Council adopt the resolution. 
 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move to adopt Resolution No. 3662, a resolution that makes annual inflationary adjustments 
to fees the City of Newport charges applicants for the review of land use actions. 
 

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:  The City of Newport has established fees for land use actions to 
cover expenses incidental to the cost of reviewing such requests, including costs related to publishing notices for hearings, 
mailing notices to affected property owners/agencies, preparing and copying staff reports, and other responsibilities as 
required by state law and city ordinances. 
 

In 2009, the City hired the consulting firm FCS Group to conduct a Comprehensive Use Fee Study.  The study, released 
in September of 2009, considered the direct and indirect costs the city incurs in reviewing land use requests and found that 
the city was recovering about 15% of its direct costs through land use fees.  The study further provided guidance for 
establishing a cost recovery policy, including weighing the public benefit versus private benefit when determining the level 
of full cost of services that should be recovered through fees. Considering this guidance, and the direct and indirect costs 
detailed in the FCS Study, the City Council determined that it is appropriate to set a target of collecting 50% of the direct 
cost of administering land use actions through fees. 
 

Given the length of time since the city had last amended its fees, and the amount of increase needed to achieve 50% 
recovery of direct costs, the Council elected to phase in fee adjustments over a four (4) year period beginning in January 
2010 (Resolution No. 3486).  Direct costs were adjusted for inflation during the phase in period using the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics Consumer Price Index for Urban Consumers (CPI-U).  Now that the four (4) year phase in period is complete, it 
is necessary to annually adjust the fees to account for changes in the CPI-U.  This ensures that the city will continue to 
meet its objective of 50% recovery of direct costs. 
 

The CPI-U in effect in November of 2012 is the “base case” or denominator used in calculating fee adjustments.  The 
numerator is the CPI-U available on November of 2013, and the result from the calculation is a multiplier that can be 
applied against the existing fees to tabulate the new rates.  The multiplier was derived as follows: 
 

233.069 ÷ 230.221 = 1.012 
 

Proposed fees for 2014 are listed in the fee schedule attached as Exhibit A to the draft resolution.  Fees for 2010 through 
2013 are included with Resolution No. 3486.  In 2012, the city adopted fees for the review of Vacation Rental and Bed & 
Breakfast Endorsements (Resolution No. 3585) and Traffic Impact Analysis Reports (Resolution No. 3616).  For ease of 
administration, those fees have been incorporated into the proposed fee schedule. 
 

Fees for temporary signs and uses have not been adjusted to achieve 50% recovery of direct costs because doing so may 
be overly burdensome given the modest investment typically associated with these activities.  New fees are included in the 
resolution for the demolition of signs and for mural signs with dimensions that exceed the area allowed for wall signs.  In 
both cases, the fees are required by ordinance but have never been established by the city. The amounts listed for the two 
fees reflect the anticipated level of review considering the city’s cost recovery objectives. 



Page 2 of 2 

OTHER ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:  None.  Resolution No. 3486 sets out that annual adjustments are to be 
made to land use fees to account for inflationary impacts. 
 

CITY COUNCIL GOALS:  Adjusting land use fees in this manner is consistent with the city’s objective of maintaining 
fiscal responsibility and encouraging sustainable development. 
 
ATTACHMENT LIST: 
 Proposed Resolution 
 Resolution No. 3486 
 Resolution No. 3585 
 Resolution No. 3616 
 Bureau of Labor Statistics CPI-U Table (relevant figures highlighted) 
 
FISCAL NOTES:  The city typically collects somewhere between $15,000 and $25,000 a year in land use fees, which 
is a very modest impact on the overall General Fund. 



Page 1 of 3 

CITY OF NEWPORT 

RESOLUTION 3662 

 

RESOLUTION AMENDING CITY OF NEWPORT 

FEES FOR REVIEW OF LAND USE ACTIONS 

 

Findings: 

 

1. The City of Newport has established fees for land use actions to cover expenses incidental to the 

cost of reviewing such requests, including costs related to publishing notices for hearings, mailing 

notices to affected property owners/agencies, preparing and copying staff reports, and other 

responsibilities as required by state law and city ordinances. 

 

2. A Comprehensive Use Fee Study for the City of Newport, by FCS Group, dated September of 

2009, considered the direct and indirect costs the city incurs in reviewing land use requests and 

found that the city was recovering about 15% of its direct costs through land use fees. 

 

4. The FCS Study provides guidance for establishing a cost recovery policy, including weighing the 

public benefit versus private benefit when determining the level of full cost of services that 

should be recovered through fees. Considering this guidance, and the direct and indirect costs 

detailed in the FCS Study, the City Council determined that it is appropriate to set a target of 

collecting 50% of the direct cost of administering land use actions through fees. 

 

5. Given the length of time since the city had last amended its fees, and the amount of increase 

needed to achieve 50% recovery of direct costs, the Council elected to phase in fee adjustments 

over a four (4) year period beginning in January 2010 (Resolution No. 3486).  Direct costs were 

adjusted for inflation during the phase in period using the Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer 

Price Index for Urban Consumers (CPI-U). 

 

6. As called for in Resolution No. 3486, and consistent with Chapter 14.60 of the Newport 

Municipal Code (NMC), it is necessary to annually adjust fees once the phase in period is 

complete to account for changes in the CPI-U, with calendar year 2014 being the first year that 

such annual adjustments will take place.  This ensures that the city will continue to meet its 

objective of 50% recovery of direct costs. 

 

7. For ease of administration, fees for the review of Vacation Rental and Bed & Breakfast 

Endorsements created with Resolution No. 3585, effective July 1, 2012, and fees related to the 

review of Traffic Impact Analysis Reports created with Resolution No. 3616, effective December 

5, 2012 are incorporated into this resolution and fee schedule. 

 

8. Fees for temporary signs and uses have not been adjusted to achieve 50% recovery of direct costs 

because doing so may be overly burdensome given the modest investment typically associated 

with these activities.  New fees are included in the resolution for the demolition of signs and for 



Page 2 of 3 

mural signs with dimensions that exceed the area allowed for wall signs.  In both cases, the fees 

are required by ordinance but have never been established by the city. The amounts listed for the 

two fees reflect the anticipated level of review considering the cost recovery objectives discussed 

herein. 

 

9. Sections from prior land use fee resolutions addressing charges that are subject to alternative 

methods of being calculated, either by law or because of the unique nature of the fee, have been 

incorporated into this resolution. 

 

Based on these findings, 

 

THE CITY OF NEWPORT RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. Land Use Fees. Fees for land use actions shall be as reflected in Exhibit A to this 

resolution. 

 

Section 2. Annual Fee Adjustments. Consistent with NMC Chapter 14.60, the fees established herein 

shall be reviewed annually and adjusted as needed effective January of each year to account for 

inflation using the Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price Index for Urban Consumers (CPI-U). 

 

Section 3. Fees Relating to ORS 227.186 Notifications. The applicant for a land use application 

requiring notification under ORS 227.186 (Measure 56 notification) shall pay, in addition to the land 

use application fee, the cost of preparing and mailing the notification. The city shall prepare an 

estimate of the cost and shall notify the applicant of the estimated cost. The estimated cost shall be 

paid within five (5) business days after notification of such determination or the application shall be 

subject to dismissal. In the event that actual costs exceed estimated costs, the applicant shall be billed 

the difference and payment of the difference is due within 30 days after notice is provided to the 

applicant. In the event that the amount of such estimated payment exceeds the actual cost of 

notification, the difference shall be refunded to the applicant. 

 

Section 4. Fees Relating to Appeal Transcripts. For appeals of land use actions, the appellant shall 

pay the actual cost of preparing a verbatim written transcript up to $500. If there is more than one 

appellant, each such appellant shall pay an appeal fee and the cost of preparing a written transcript. 

All of the appellants shall be jointly and severally liable for the cost and charges of such transcripts, 

and any or all appeals pending in any matters may be dismissed by the Newport City Council in the 

event of failure to make payment of the transcript fees. Upon filing an appeal, the city shall determine 

the estimated cost of such transcript, and the amount of such estimated cost shall be paid to the city 

within five (5) business days after notification of such determination, or the appeal shall be subject to 

dismissal. In the event that actual costs of preparing the transcript exceed the amount of the estimate, 

the appellant(s) shall be billed the difference and payment of the difference is due within 30 days 

after notice is provided. Failure of appellant(s) to make payment within 30 days will subject the 

appeal to dismissal. In the event that the amount of such estimated payment exceeds the actual cost of 

the transcript, the amount so paid shall be refunded, prorated, to those parties actually having paid 



Page 3 of 3 

them. As provided by ORS 227.180, in lieu of a transcript prepared by the city and the fee thereof, 

parties to an appeal held on the record may prepare a transcript of relevant portions of the 

proceedings conducted at a lower level at the party’s own expense. If an appellant prevails at a 

hearing or on appeal, the transcript fee shall be refunded. 

 

Section 5. Fees Relating to Withdrawal of Annexations. Withdrawals are administered as 

annexations. In addition to the filing fee, the owner of each parcel of property to be so withdrawn 

shall, as a condition of such withdrawal action, and prior thereto, pay or make arrangements 

satisfactory to the city for the payment of any bonded indebtedness or any other charges attributable 

to such property which may become a debt, obligation, or liability of the City of Newport by reason 

of such withdrawal.  Nothing herein contained shall be construed to prevent the Newport City 

Council from initiating and carrying out the withdrawal proceedings on its own motion and the 

assumption of such obligations pursuant to the applicable state law if the City Council determines 

that to do so is in the best interest of the city. 

 

Section 6. Inspection Fees for Vacation Rental and Bed & Breakfast Facilities. The application fee 

for Vacation Rental and Bed & Breakfast Facilities contained in Exhibit A includes an initial 

inspection of the dwelling unit by the Building Official. The fee for each subsequent Building 

Official inspection shall be $75. 

 

Section 7. Repeal of Prior Fees. All previously adopted resolutions or enactments establishing fees 

for land use actions, including Resolution No. 3486, Resolution No. 3585, and Resolution No. 3616, 

are hereby repealed to the extent that their provisions conflict with the fees set by this resolution. 

 

Section 8: Effective Date. This resolution shall be effective upon passage. 

 

Adopted by a ______ vote of the Newport City Council on ________________, 2014. 

 

Approved by the Mayor on _________________, 2014. 

 

 
____________________________________ 

Sandra Roumagoux 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST:          

 

 
____________________________________ 

Margaret M. Hawker  

City Recorder        



CITY OF NEWPORT

LAND USE FEES

Permit Type Fee Amount

Annexation $708

      Each additional parcel in separate ownership $44

Appeal (First Hearing) $250

Appeal (Second Hearing)* $295

Comprehensive Plan Amendment:

Text $1,192

Map $1,192

Conditional Use Permit:

Planning Commission $758

Staff $607

Estuarine Use Permit $584

Design Review - Nye Beach $610

Encroachment - right-of-way $471

Exception to Statewide Goal $373

Geologic Permit $204

Interpretation $419

Land Use Compatibility Signoff $54

Minor Replat $315

Nonconforming Use Permit $758

Partition $315

Planned Destination Resort:

Conceptual Master Plan $1,322

per acre charge $48

Preliminary Development Plan $1,147

charge per each lot $48

Final Development Plan $1,043

Planned Unit Development:

Tentative Plan $1,147

charge per each unit $48

Final Plan $1,043

charge per each unit $48

Property Line Adjustment $303

Shoreland Impact Permit $503

Signs:

one temporary/portable sign** $30

each additional portable sign $10

other signs (new, replacement, or reconstruction) $120

sign demolition $10

surcharge for mural sign in excess of wall sign limits*** $100

Subdivisions:

Tentative Plan $958

charge per each unit $48

Final Plat $418

 1/2014 Page 1

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Exhibit AResolution No. ____



CITY OF NEWPORT

LAND USE FEES

Permit Type Fee Amount

charge per each unit $48

Temporary Structures Permit $40

Traffic Impact Analysis (w/no other land use) $607

Trip Assessment or Vesting Letter $54

Trip Reserve Fund $758

Urban Growth Boundary Amendment $1,432

Vacations (streets and plats)**** $766

 Vacation Rentals & B&B Endorsements (includes 

initial inspection) $127

 follow-up inspection fee $75

Variances/Adjustments:

Planning Commission $584

Staff $503

Zoning Ordinance Amendments:

Text $1,192

Map $1,192

Other staff level permits requiring public notice $477

*Plus cost of producing a verbatim transcript of the initial evidentiary 

hearing ($500 cap).

**Plus $25 per month that the temporary signs remain within the right-

of-way, not to exceed $100 per calendar year.  Nonprofit organizations 

are exempt from fees for temporary signs.

***Nonprofit organizations are exempt from this surcharge fee.

****Plus appraisal cost and damages.

 1/2014 Page 2



CITY OF NEWPORT 
RESOLUTION 3486 

RESOLUTION SETTING FEES FOR LAND USE ACTIONS 
AND REPEAL THE PREVIOUS LAND USE FEE RESOLUTION 

Findings: 

The City of Newport has established fees for land use actions to cover expenses incidental to the 
cost of reviewing such requests, including costs related to publishing notices for hearings, mailing 
notices to affected property owners/agencies, preparing and copying staff reports, and other 
responsibilities as required by state law and city ordinances. 

Fees for land use actions were last updated in August of 2003 (Resolution No. 3319) and were not 
established for the purpose of recovering a specific percentage of the costs incurred by the city. 

A Comprehensive Use Fee Study for the City of Newport, by FCS Group, dated September of 
2009, considered the direct and indirect costs the City incurs in reviewing land use requests, 
including estimates for each permit type in today's dollars. The FCS Study found that the city is 
currently recovering about 15% of its direct costs through land use fees. 

The FCS Study provides guidance for establishing a cost recovery policy, including weighing the 
public benefit versus private benefit when determining the level of full cost of services that 
should be recovered through fees. Considering this guidance, and the direct and indirect costs 
detailed in the FCS Study, it is appropriate to set a target of collecting 50% of the direct cost of 
administering land use actions through fees. 

Given the length of time since the city last amended its fees, and the amount of increase needed to 
achieve 50% recovery of direct costs, it is appropriate to phase in fee adjustments over a four (4) 
year period, adjusted for inflation using the Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price Index for 
Urban Consumers (CPI-U). 

Once the fees increases are phased in, land use fees shall be adjusted annually effective January 
1 "  of each year to account for changes in the CPI-U, and such adjustments are to be placed in a 
resolution on the consent calendar of the Newport City Council at a December meeting to allow 
for public awareness of the fee changes. 

A cost recovery policy for land use fees was considered by the City of Newport Planning 
Commission at an October 12, 2009 public meeting, and the approach outlined herein is 
consistent with their recommendation. The Newport City Council considered the Cormnission's 
recommendation on December 7, 2009. Appropriate public notification was provided for both the 
Planning Commission and City Council meetings. 



8. The prior land use fee ordinance (Resolution No. 3319), being no longer current, should be 
repealed. Those sections of Resolution No. 3319, which are still applicable, have been 
incorporated into this ordinance. 

Based on these findings, 

THE CITY OF NEWPORT RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Land Use Fees. Fees for land use actions shall be increased over a four (4) year period as 
reflected in Exhibit A, beginning on January 1, 2010. 

Section 2. Annual Fee Adjustments. Once the fee increases in Exhibit A have been implemented, 
land use fees shall be adjusted annually on January 1st  of each year. Fee adjustments are to be 
calculated by multiplying the fee as of November 2013 by a fraction, the numerator of which is the 
CPI Index Figure for the month of November proceeding the January in which the fee is to be 
adjusted and the denominator of which is to be the "Base CPI Index Figure." As used in this section, 
"Index" refers to the All Urban Consumers (CPI-U), U.S. City Average, CPI Index published by the 
Bureau of Labor Statistics of the United States Department of Labor. The Base CPI Figure will be the 
index figure for the month of November 2012. 

Section 3. Fees Relating to ORS 227.186 Notifications. The applicant for a land use application 
requiring notification under ORS 227.186 (Measure 56 notification) shall pay, in addition to the land 
use application fee, the cost of preparing and mailing the notification. The city shall prepare an 
estimate of the cost and shall notify the applicant of the estimated cost. The estimated cost shall be 
paid within five (5) business days after notification of such determination or the application shall be 
subject to dismissal. In the event that actual costs exceed estimated costs, the applicant shall be billed 
the difference and payment of the difference is due within 30 days after notice is provided to the 
applicant. In the event that the amount of such estimated payment exceeds the actual cost of 
notification, the difference shall be refunded to the applicant. 

Section 4. Fees Relating to Appeal Transcripts. For appeals of land use actions, the appellant shall 
pay the actual cost of preparing a verbatim written transcript up to $500. If there is more than one 
appellant, each such appellant shall pay an appeal fee and the cost of preparing a written transcript. 
All of the appellants shall be jointly and severally liable for the cost and charges of such transcripts, 
and any or all appeals pending in any matters may be dismissed by the Newport City Council in the 
event of failure to make payment of the transcript fees. Upon filing an appeal, the city shall determine 
the estimated cost of such transcript, and the amount of such estimated cost shall be paid to the city 
within five (5) business days after notification of such determination, or the appeal shall be subject to 
dismissal. In the event that actual costs of preparing the transcript exceed the amount of the estimate, 
the appellant(s) shall be billed the difference and payment of the difference is due within 30 days 
after notice is provided. Failure of appellant(s) to make payment within 30 days will subject the 
appeal to dismissal. In the event that the amount of such estimated payment exceeds the actual cost of 
the transcript, the amount so paid shall be refunded, prorated, to those parties actually having paid 



them. As provided by ORS 227.180, in lieu of a transcript prepared by the city and the fee thereof, 
parties to an appeal held on the record may prepare a transcript of relevant portions of the 
proceedings conducted at a lower level at the party's own expense. If an appellant prevails at a 
hearing or on appeal, the transcript fee shall be refunded. 

Section 5. Fees Relating to Withdrawal of Annexations. Withdrawals are administered as 
annexations. In addition to the filing fee, the owner of each parcel of property to be so withdrawn 
shall, as a condition of such withdrawal action, and prior thereto, pay or make arrangements 
satisfactory to the city for the payment of any bonded indebtedness or any other charges aftributable 
to such property which may become a debt, obligation, or liability of the City of Newport by reason 
of such withdrawal. Nothing herein contained shall be construed to prevent the Newport City Council 
from initiating and carrying out the withdrawal proceedings on its own motion and the assumption of 
such obligations pursuant to the applicable state law if the City Council determines that to do so is in 
the best interest of the city. 

Section 6. Additions or Amendments to Land Use Fee Categories. In the event there is a need to 
make changes to the categories of fees charged for land use actions, the city may put such changes 
into effect by amending Exhibit A to this resolution. For new fees, the Base CPI Figure will be the 
index figure for the month of November proceeding the date the fee was adopted. 

Section 7. Repeal of Prior Resolution. Resolution No. 3319 is repealed in its entirety. 

Section 8: Effective Date. The effective date of this resolution is January 1, 2010. 

Adopted by a 7-0 vote of the Newport City Council on, 2009. 

Approved by the Mayor on 	 , 2009. 

I P  141~1) Ce ~, ~ 1, -,K —1  

WifliauiFi D. Bain 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

'r  W' /  'IQ ,*f#M 
PRO I  PrPO rd 

!-c o:r d~e r 



Exhibit A to Resolution 3486 

Permit Type Current Fee Direct Unit Cost 50% of Direct Cost 50% Cost Adjusted 1/1/10 
Fees Effective: 
1/1/11 	1/1/12 1/1/13 

Annexation $700 $1,126 $563 $638 $700 $700 $700 $700 
Each additional parcel in separate ownership $20 $77 $39 $44 $26 $32 $38 $44 
Appeals* $150 $515 $258 $292 $185 $221 $256 $292 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment: 

Text $325 $2,079 $1,040 $1,178 $538 $752 $965 $1,178 
Map $325 $2,079 $1,040 $1,178 $538 $752 $965 $1,178 

Conditional Use Permit: 
Planning Commission $195 $1,322 $661 $749 $334 $472 $611 $749 
Staff $150 $1,058 $529 $600 $262 $375 $487 $600 

Estuarine Use Permit $0 $1,018 $509 $577 $144 $288 $433 $577 
Design Review - Nye Beach $0 $1,064 $532 $603 $151 $301 $452 $603 
Encroachment - right-of-way $100 $822 $411 $466 $191 $283 $374 $466 
Exception to Statewide Goal $325 $0 $325 $368 $336 $347 $358 $368 
Geologic Permit $65 $355 $178 $201 $99 $133 $167 $201 
Interpretation $150 $730 $365 $414 $216 $282 $348 $414 
Land Use Compatibility Signoff $0 $94 $47 $53 $13 $27 $40 $53 
MinorPartition $50 $550 $275 $312 $115 $181 $246 $312 
Nonconforming Use Permit $195 $1,322 $661 $749 $334 $472 $611 $749 
Partition $50 $550 $275 $312 $115 $181 $246 $312 
Planned Destination Resort: 

Conceptual Master Plan $325 $2,306 $1,153 $1,307 $570 $816 $1,061 $1,307 
per acre charge $2 $83 $42 $47 $13 $25 $36 $47 
Preliminary Development Plan $130 $2,000 $1,000 $1,133 $381 $632 $883 $1,133 
percharge pereach lot $13 $83 $42 $47 $22 $30 $39 $47 
Final Development Plan $130 $1,818 $909 $1,030 $355 $580 $805 $1,030 

Planned Unit Development: 
Tentative Plan $260 $2,000 $1,000 $1,133 $478 $697 $915 $1,133 
charge pereach unit $10 $83 $42 $47 $19 $29 $38 $47 
Final Plan $260 $1,818 $909 $1,030 $453 $645 $838 $1,030 
charge per each unit $10 $83 $42 $47 $19 $29 $38 $47 

Property Line Adjustment $50 $528 $264 $299 $112 $175 $237 $299 
Shoreland Impact Permit $0 $877 $439 $497 $124 $248 $373 $497 
Signs: 

One temporary/portable sign $25 $119 $60 $67 $36 $46 $57 $67 
eachadditional $10 $0 $10 $11 $10 $10 $10 $10 
Othersigns $100 $205 $103 $116 $104 $108 $112 $116 

City of Newport Land Use Permit Fee Adjustments 	 Page 1 



Exhibit A to Resolution 3486 

Permit Type Current Fee Direct Unit Cost 50% of Direct Cost 50% Cost Adjusted 111/10 
Fees Effective: 
1/1/11 	1/1/12 1/1/13 

Subdivisions: 
Tentative Plan $230 $1,670 $835 $946 $409 $588 $767 $946 
charge pereach unit $10 $83 $42 $47 $19 $29 $38 $47 
Final Plat $230 $728 $364 $413 $276 $321 $367 $413 
charge pereach unit $10 $83 $42 $47 $19 $29 $38 $47 

Urban Growth Boundary Amendment $325 $2,497 $1,249 $1,415 $598 $870 $1,143 $1,415 
Vacations** $500 $1,335 $668 $757 $564 $628 $692 $757 
Variances/Adjustments: 

Planning Commission $195 $1,018 $509 $577 $290 $386 $481 $577 
Staff $150 $877 $439 $497 $237 $323 $410 $497 

Zoning Ordinance Amendments: 
Text $325 $2,079 $1,040 $1,178 $538 $752 $965 $1,178 
Map $325 $2,079 $1,040 $1,178 $538 $752 $965 $1,178 

Other staff level permits requiring pubflc notice $50 $831 $416 $471 $155 $260 $366 $471 

* plus cost of producing a verbatim transcript. 
** plus appraisal cost and damages. 

City of Newport Land Use Permit Fee Adjustments 	 Page 2 


	1 AGENDA - January 6, 2013
	2 Planning Commission Vacancy
	Planning Commission Membership
	Commission Application
	Planning Commission Applications

	3 City Manager's Priorities
	3a City Manager's Role
	4 December 16, 2013-Minutes
	4 December 16, 2013-Work Session Minutes
	5 Committee Re-Appointments 2014
	7 Councilor Allen memo - ITF report
	7a ITF report for 1-06-14 council meeting
	7b res_3637
	Page 1
	Page 2

	7c Utility Billing Projection - 5 year
	8 Sea Loin
	10 Post Issuance Compliance Policy - Staff Report
	10a Post Issuance Compliance Policy - Resolution No. 3661
	10b Post-Issuance Compliance Policy
	11 CAI Summary 2014 Fees
	11a Resolution No  3662  2014 Land Use Fees
	11b Resolution Exhibit A - 2014 fee schedule
	11c res_3486



